STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING
TUESDAY, JUNE 18™5, 2013 12:00 P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA

BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 12:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION AT 12:00 P.M. (Closed
meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220(4) for the purpose of conferring with the County’s
management regarding labor negotiations.)

2. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 18, 2013
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 2, 2013

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

6. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 05/24/13 for $1,276.76, date
06/07/13 for $467,447.25 and Accounts Payable date 05/31/13 for $173,218.30

7. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:
a. Caldera Electric - Contractor/508 Jackson Way, Carson City

1




b. Kalen Johnson- General/1480 Grey Bluff Drive, Fernley
c. Cool Breeze Refrigeration & Heating - Contractor/275 Gallaway Lane, Reno

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

8. DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports

9. DISCUSSION (No Action): Greg Hess, Mary Walker and Maggie Lowther - Recap and
highlights of the recently concluded 2013 Legislative Session and Special Session.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modification to existing license of VC
QOutlaws. Adding Marla J. Mckechnie as a primary owner.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modifications and extension of the
Agreement between Storey County (Employer) and Storey County Employee’s Association
(Union) also referred to as AFSCME Local Union, Comstock Chapter.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-373 setting salaries

13. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE NRS 473 STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-374 for the dissolution of NRS
NDEF Fire Protection District. The new Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP) will replace the
need for the NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection District.

15. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-374 for the dissolution of NRS
NDF Fire Protection District. The new Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP) will replace the
need for the NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection District.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 13-376 augment the NRS 474
Storey County Fire Protection District Fund

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of fuel bids for vehicle and propane.
19. RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 13-379 providing for an increase in
the water and sewer rates.

21. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Renew, extend or allow to expire a lease on County owned
property known as the Gold Hill Depot between Storey County and Gold Hill Historical Society.

2




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance 13-248, an ordinance
amending Storey County Code Chapter 1520 updating provisions, providing for new
definitions, requiring maintenance in watercourses, and providing for other properly related
matters.

24. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

AT SR e AN op

Queen of Spades ~ General/11 North C Street, VC

Virginia City Mining Company - General/171 South C Street, VC
Commercial Restroom Solutions, LLC - 1379 Waterloo Lane, Gardnerville
Bulette’s Restaurant & Saloon - General/5 North C Street, VC

Nevada Distribution Services, LLC - General/625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI
Schwabe North America, Inc.- General/2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI

Mars Petcare US - General /725 Waltham Way TRI

Virginia City Kettle Corn Depot - General/188 South C Street VC

Hot Pot, LLC - General /420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 TRI

American Arms Delta - General /224 East Sydney Drive, Suite B TRI
Battle Born Munitions, Inc. - General/625 Waltham Way TRI

25. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

26. BOARD COMMENT

27. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the beginning of each meeting (this comment should be
limited to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item
on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the agenda). Time limits on
Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board. Please limit your
comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call

3




(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before June 12, 2013; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

By
Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk-Treasurer




Minutes for April 2, 2013

*Minutes will be posted to the website under a separate link




Claims




T

00 LPT
P1 34
ST LET
¥67602

8Z £56°€

00" 0EY

01" Le8’'T
ST LE

24L°89T°T

€6°00¢

€5°051

Q0'6LE

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

00" %62
00°9T

00 LPT
FT'9L

ST LEE
¥6602

00" 9%
SB'0SE
EX R TAS
86768
1864
09" 79T
98798
66°0ZT
00"S5%8
£676LY
09'LLS'T

00" 02%
GO 0T

0T L68'T
ST LE

00"szz
86°2¢
gerze
87" T8
gy'1g
BF I8
8% 18
8% 18
2y 18
8% 18
89" I8
8% I8
87" T8
gy’ 18
8y IR
£6°00¢€
68°8¢€
S9° 5%
20°0%
89°¢g
SETLT

00° L€

LMOOWY

C8TS9
TeTS9

[A N3]
TTTS9
CoTS59
6TTIS9

86Ts2
&6TSS
66TS9
66159
TETS9
TETS9
I€TS9
TETISS
ZLIS9
TELS9
8¥159

BLTEY
BLTSS

£6TS59
56059

EITSS
£€TTGD
€TITS®
81153
8ITSS
8TTSS
8TTS9
8TIS9
81159
81TSe
8TTS9
8TTS9
BTTS9
817158
BIISS

STZSS
TST59
TSTS2
15158
LTTSY
LTTS9

811s¢

#ENVHL

£1/1E/S
ET/TE/S

€LT/1E/5
ET/1E/9
ET/TE/S
£T/TE/S

ET/TE/S
£T/1E/5
€I/TE/S
£T/tE/5
£ET/1E/S
£I/TE/S
£T/TE/S
ET/TIE/S
£T/1E/5
ET/TE/S
£I/TE/S

ET/1E/S
ET/TIE/S

€T/1¢/9
ET/TE/S

£T/TE/S
£T/TE/S
ET/1E/S
ET/T6/S
€L/1E/S
€T/TE/S
£T/TE/S
£1/1%/9
£T/TE/S
€I/1E/S
£T/TE/S
€T/TE/S
EI/T1E/S
ET/TE/S
ET/1E/S

£T/TE/S
£1/T€/9
£T/TE/S
ET/TE/S
ET/TIE/S
£T/T1E/S

ET/TE/S

LIV

"€T0T "ZE-6 AWW

UESENGSIq INFWHGTNIVYD
JISUNES T INAWHSINUVD
TE0d

S01aVE ¥04 SEINILLYE

IDYISOd IMENVIHDONG
INFATOS

HTZZON ‘ASOH ‘YIHNNTIA
LAN aNO&

£L/%/¥%

ET/¥%2/%

£T/62/¢

NOILNIANCD OO¥N NCSIYD
9€E0Q0TTT ¥HA¥O Q=¥
SI¥Vd LNAWADVTIAIE MD0LE
LOTADVI /SENG NNV

€T0Z '22-6 AVH
EP0L9000000Z ANI
SEIIAMES HONFUEANCOITIHL

CGEEE

SAZINTNW

agay

TYDIISAHd MOHHLIM
TY2ISAHE TAHOM
TEDISAHE I ‘JATANYHD
TYDISAHd ¥ATONVHD
TEIISAHd ¥ASEL
TYIISAHA INVIUALD
TYIISAHd dOIDEH
TYOISAHd SIQAY
TYOISXHd AHAOD
T¥OISAHd NOSIHNVH
TYOISAHd NOLMNH
TYIISAHd DANGIANTEE

AYANOVYT HO
AYaNNYT JOHS
AHANNYT dCHS

AECONOYT 2418
AEQNOYT TL-LI8

YANOL ¥L-H

NOTILATHOSHEd FIIOANI

€T/TE/S WALSIDIY ADIHD

ALNNCD AFEAOLS

SIMNET LICDS ‘TI3d¥ndg

ONI WMWIY QTIg¥Young

5T1d MY I1ENNZE
WNETOWLAd OTEYIQ VENV AVE

(OHEY) S04 SIIYHLIVE

vOLEH YOTUEWY £0 MNVE

ang AONTN yzavd
QILINITNG SOTIETHLY

TAYES HONJSTIANOOETEL L3IV

SSENTTIM ONY HIIVIH J9v

Jd900 SNI FJIT SYLIUENY

ONI Q087T1V
SHWOLEND NITICY IH SWYaY
HOANIA

ET/1E/S0
STETEd

PossL
€98GL
29554
13:E1-12

09554

6595SL

BEEGL
LGSSL

95554

S55524

¥S854

TES9L
25654

HAENNN

ADTHD
t @3eg unyg
tON 3xodad




00°59 §5T75% £T/18/5 ATYEIEYND ¥IND UNS M1

$3d ¥ AIIWIAL NISYd LVIND 58552
0L %09 'L S1°968 ¥STS9 ET/TE/S JEAVATING OF¥-Md
LY 855'T ¥STS59 €T/TE/S 180 AIQ'INA OF¥ HOA FEIL
€T SPE‘T 5159 £T/1E/% JAOYETINN DEY ‘18T FAA-MT
nDgreeE’T ¥ETE2 ET/TE/S OYMST OTHU'0EMOT dANS Md
L¥ 0Z6 FSTSY £T/1€/5 QICVETINA A¥INOHY-Md
89°00E'T ¥5159 £T/1E/% QIOVATING DF ‘ISq FAG-WT
2T AOMEANT §3FXTd PESSL
6L FIT 2T 06°286'T 21259 £EI/TIE/S N2ISEA ATA S7¥ UIY NOHAIS
627 ZET'0T 17259 ET/TE/S INEAT AYd HIAVE )
. ONTUIANTONT LISTM HAVS E855L
i£°2% T£°gS S0TS59 €T/TE/S HILND ¥NS OOMNOOT FZIPTSS
0D SO¥E WIAWIYYL ZBSSL
[4: 384} c8'Z9 85T59 ET/TE/S SEITAANS NOIIVOTYHI INJ,
SLONCONd NOLLYSTUNI ONIME TBESGL
00 vEE 0o vee Z0TSS ET/TE/S 0LSZSL ANI
L GYYNOET ‘dESNILLA 085S5L
00°1¢6 00" TES TTTS9 €T/TE/S LNIVK ¥2Z0Q
JNI 0T-X4 6LESL
00 00T 00°00T 88159 ET/TE/S HLOOCH WY3
204 ‘NITENG 8L55L
00°000‘SS 00'008'2S 6FTS9 £T/TE/S INIWITEDHY SID TYIOTIATINT
00°00S'2 E¥T59 £T/1E/S INAWAFEDY SID TYIOTHIINI
ALNNOS S¥ION0 LLESY
00° 80T D0 80T 64159 ET/TE/S £10Z ‘EE-6 AYW
. ¥ OIAYIOC ‘YISFN) 9LSSL
00°TITITT 00°6¢€ ZETSS £T/TE/S HOILON ONINWHH TYNIL
00°2L0°T SLIS9 £1/TE/S ZEEE ANI
(2A) EIDINOYHD MDOISWOD SLSSL
P6'69L L ¥6 6L L 76059 ET/TE/S LETISSVAOTANE /2UYIATIHD
ONI ISHHD AIINDMWWOD PLGGL :
057 LEE 06" LEE E£PISY £T/1E/S S¢d NOTIWILODEN ZINUOSSOY m
d SETYYH) ‘TIINIAD0D ELSSL :
¥E 66 z0's 60TS9 ET/1E/S TQIYOUIY TO000-5600ZSELE :
067101 1182 €T/1¢/% HIHDLH T /AN IR ”
08" ZLT BOESY ET/TE/S NHOL-ENIW Z90£9ZZLL IDD¥
z0' 0K 80Z59 £T/TE/s INYId MLM ETEP998LP IDDV
dIHSHENLEYS ODTTEAD ZLSSL
00" LES 00°'LES 90TS9 ET/TE/S
ONI ¥00aLN0 s8D0 TLSSL
00°TT 00°TT 02159 ET/TE/S SLuvd NC IHSIZEJ
dY0D INIWGINDE NYHWHSYD 0LSSL
£0°92 5878 (4341} £T/TE/S N¥d OYdAH HEMOW HINTEM
8T LT Z5TS9 €1/1E/S NIGUYHS FAVIE /NId SYAHS
SENIONE TIWWS NOSHNYD 6955¢L
6% ¥T 6% %1 ESTSQ ET/TE/S K09 TI0
] SL¥Yd OINY ALID TYLIAYD 89554
ST OLE ST°0LE TLTS9 £T/TE/S TIIE YAMOE dI¥E aId
NIWFACUIW] 'IVHANID NOANYD LSESL
8E'LEQE 8€°LEO'E T6TS2 £T/1E/S 99%6 ANI
ONI STYINITI ALYvd LOTAWYD 99552
857 ZLL 68765 0TTSY €T/TE/S AISYAESTIA LNIWHS INYYS
8b SZE 0TTS9 €T/TE/S JISYNESTA LNEWHSINITO
TZ'LBE DITS9 £T/TE/S AISANESTIA INTWHSINIVD
TYNCISSREAOYd ¥ SSENISNE LT
00" 0TE
TYLOL INNCWY #ENTEL qLva # o/4 NOIIAI¥OSEd EOI0ANT YOUNTA HEFWAN
ADEHED MOEHD
£I/1E/5 Y¥ALSIOAY ADFHD ET/TE/S0 ¢ @3eqg uny
z  ebeg ALNOOD AF¥OLS STETAd ‘0N 3ac0day




TL T4 BSTG9 ET/TE/S SHITEdNE FADIAJ0

£T°0T2 LZTSS €1/1E/S 531174408 FOILL0
D0 E6 [ =2 451 ET/TE/S SEAOTAANT
-8 02 LZTISS ET/TE/S NYALEE ¥Od LIATAD
0L FFT ELTSS £T/TE/S T698S6LTHO
61 685 £LTS9 ET/TE/S TO9P0SLTHO
NI SNOLINTOS EDIJJI0 O¥LIEW 9095L
00°06T 00°0ST 09159 ET/TE/S
JTAINNHL *NIVDIOMW S095L
9E° 62 9¢£° 52 T9TS9 £T/1E/S YIVSHY ddd FIATHYT
SESTYIUALNG NIANIYW P09SL
00 06T 00 05T LOTSS ET/TE/S SADIANES DNINVIID £1/6/S
4 LVEYOHYH ‘YIVLLVVH £D9SL
00" 089 007089 86059 £L/TE/S IdY¥0S LIFELS LIE00Hd
g ¥SIT ‘QQuvdneT Z2095L
£9°625 €9 %L 9ZTS9 £1/1E/9 IV INSYINd
00°02% 92T59 £T/TE/S SHTOD0D STYNOSWHS
00°S€ 92159 £T/TE/S TTOD0S ANYIATIM
SNOS ¥ SII¥OD N 1T T09SL
00°z08 007 Z6L 08TS9 ET/TE/S : EI0Z ‘2Z2-6 XVW
00'¢ 08159 €T/T1E/S
00°T 0BTS9 ET/1E/S
I¥ED ¥ SJOTENZEd ‘YATHOEIN 00964
00'0EE'T 0002’1 SZTS9 €T/T€/S HNITNG SWHE (ALIWIINA
O NOILYONAH HAHOIH NYIdvA 66584
85 8L 85'8L LSTS9 €T/1E/S ATESY TVAS TLE gyId
Q¥o4 Lsam sENoOL 8655L
6€° %9 6E° %9 vZTSs9 EL/TE/S NIVHD MOL ¥%i-d
o1 440 LESSL
PPOTEQ'E £EL°0T6 £ZIS9 £T/1€/8 UIONITAIVNY NYSNS CQUTOEAHN
TT'1EY €BTSS ET/T1E/S dWCD MEN g5 YOI FAYMIIOS
0T 00L'T EZTTIED ET/TE/S TAYEDADR YIAATS
D17 EDANOS T&LI 9655L
0000001 007000701 £0TS9 €T/TEe/S ZEOS ANI
OTT dLT S6SSL
80°0Z 80" 0% LETSH £T/1E/S STYNNVH Y04 LHOHIANA
TIONAQOSTEAOD TYNOILUNEAINI PEUGL
00" 64 00" 6L 10889 ET/TE/S Z NOIIVIS FYId JIRENUINI
ONI QNVEAVONH L0dS LOH £655L
66 %39 PE°9 95159 £T/T1E/S ¥Id D000 ¥XZ HD
89 ' ¥ZT 95159 ET/TE/S ¥IJd DNIHLVEHS ¥/€ Mu¥d M1
95'0¢ 95159 ET/TESS NCILYDINMY -Muvd M1T
T¥ €9% 10159 ET/TE/S NS /NEZAUYD WWOD JOOMAT
IDIAMES LICE¥D LCd3d HWOH €655L
05 L8 05" L8 LLTS9 €T/TE/S €102 '22~6 AWM
OHOS TY¥M HIMROE DIBVOLSIH TESSL
05" LEE 0§ LEE 5%TS9 £T/18/S TOSSTIT-9TZ8EIT WIILI-SADYWI
DNIDUWIOIDIN INIASE] HOIH 06554
00 00T 00°00T 68159 £1/1€/S WY4 MOM MOd
T NIFINYW YENIHEH 68SSL
¥9°92 ¥9'92 53 a1} €1/1E/S AdVI DNIDOYIL HONVHO
LT A7ddNg ISNOD ATddns dH 88554
00°STT’6 D0"GZT’§ 80TS9 ET/1E/S LNYEDIENH - TTIIAALNGODaYND
DT ‘IVIWES XIS IYWZYH LBSSL
1% CLE Th ZLE ZZ189 £T/1TE/S SLYH HY¥IJ SNEWJTIHD
NYDTHIWY HIZON Ivaud 9855L
00°59
TYLOL LNOQWY HENTUL qLVA % 0/d NOILAI¥DSEd FDIOANI ¥OANEA YHEANN
ADEHD ADFHD
£T/1€/5 Y¥HILSISIM ADEHD €T/IE/5C : ©3eQ uny

€ abrg ALNNCD AZHOLS STETEG ‘ON Jx0dey




NI ODNIdVDSANYT NIENO ONIN 24 L-TA

4 24 Z¥ IEE €ETSY £T/TE/S SIVW 3DY¥Id SQIN
ONI SEILIYIDALS Q¥ £Z95L
[4%4-T:] 087 9€1 17159 ET/1E/S ET/LT/L~8T/9 T0-9L9ZND
6L SFL TH159 £r/1e/8 YOINOWWOD-LSIBLPESLL LDOW
(¥D} ONI 0D NYDNOW AVY 2TISL
00°'§% SL°T9 T8TS9 £I/1E/S
SE € 18159 ET/TE/S £T0Z ‘gZ-6 A¥H
W VYONYS ' QuOIave TZ95L
05'z9% 05°29 96TS9 £T/1E/8 LOL SL$ (LITdS) €1/%Z/¢
ONI SEDIAZI NOILIELO¥d 02954
9L GE9 9L 6€9 fatAE ET/TE/S
S$8EDOV WAIWINE 6T9SL
00°LPET 00" LFPE’T FLISS £E/TE/S INTWAYE HFEYET
DNI SEMOS AZNLIA 8T9SL
00°ZTT 00'2TT 9LTS9 €I/TE/S €102 ‘ZZ-6 AVH
d OTEDNY 'ININLId LT9SL
00°0TL 007014 05TS9 £I/TE/S NOLLVITIONODEY SNIJJYH
§ NHOC 'HSI¥WYd 91954
59'£25 59°£25 0ETSY £1/18/5 LNAWAYd dL¥DITdNG
JTT ¥ED OLILIWTVE ST9SL
00 £2E 00'E2E Z6159 ET/TE/S 09ST ANIY
IS % SDIHAYYD HAIS EHI NO PT9SL
FL 6BE v 68T STTSS €T/TE/S SAJOTHANT QIALNIUE
ONI 10d3acq dHrddo £I95L
SL6ZZ'T SLTEEZT P6TS9 ET/TE/S 80%Z ANI
O SNHOI YOYAEN ZT9SL
00°5g 00°5¢ SETS9 £T/TE/S NOILLISINDOV LAITHHOL
NCISIAIQ DNISYHDINA AZN TT9S5L
00°'0S 00085 6059 ET/1E/S £€10Z 'ZT-TT XYW
HITYIH 40 AL AEN 0T95L
Y1 E6%°T LE'SET 99158 €I/TE/S EIEE TING  UNLITY-¥ID UNS
£0°12 597159 €T/1E/S HE0T ANODITIS
86° ¥ S9TS9 £T/TE/S D HYIL HONOL ON-ONINNYTId
08 gz S9T59 ET/TE/S NOLIOG HSNd-¢Ld FUII
28 %6 9199  E€T/Te/S ) -¥LD UNg
00" 5L 59159 £T/1E/S AMALLVE £4d E¥IL
BEZ T8 59759 ET/TE/S HOHS MH¥H WNNI-ONINNYID
Lerezes S815% ET/TE/S SADOHS UIND ¥S
9768 §3189 ET/TE/S AYELIVE TLMEONYY HNI4
86° 69 §9159 £T/TE/S a¥q FAVHEE 2T£9S ‘0°S
[AAEA] S9TS9 £T/1E/S A2018
0L°9Z 59159 ET/TE/S D0€06BLFI ZLU TUTH
PLER 59159 ET/TE/S II¥ d¥d ¥LNED HS
SLTSHT S9TS59 ET/1E/S SQ¥d ENV¥E Id4EZd a1Ing
8E°85 59159 EI/1E/8 NO0LS
L¥' 0L 59TSS €1/1E/5 A20LE
867 80T 591595 ET/TE/S SA¥d S¥vYd I143d a1Ing
05 €T S53159 E£1/1E/S I0M TIEHM-$S0TE
18' %% S9TS9 €1/1€6/% AYHLIVE YAMOW M4
SIL¥Y¥d QLOY ON 6095L
5072 60°€ 6ZT59 £T/TE/S ¥IVAFY ¥L-H
SI1¥¥d DML ¥ OIOY Vd¥N 80554
6" TE ¥6'TE 3159 £T/TE/S HOQULENCD 0L 510
VHYWYL ‘NYDIW L09SL
€% I6T'T L6 E0T LZTSY £T/TE/S SEIT4ANE ZDIAIC
TYLOL LNQOWY #SNTHL ALYA # 0/4 NOILAIHDSId FOIOANT HOUNIA HIERAN
¥DEHD MOEHD

ma\ﬁm\mMmEmemmMUNmU EI/TE/S0 ¢ 338Q uny
¥ abeq ALNAOQD AFY¥QLS STerdd :oN 3xoday




99°§T L9159 £T/1E/S 8dND dELYdTd

56792 S6TS9 £T/TE/S HITOOD WEILWM 5018 56° ves
SAS YALYM SMOQVAN HEADAUL TP98L
08' 562 §L°GST 90259 ET/TE/S WEI- ¥4 SOLT
TO 0%T 20259 £1/1E/S 5/#- QYA SOLT
INFWAAOSIWT TYUENTD TUL 0%9GL
00" LET 00'ss5zg $8TS9 £T/T€/S
00°Z% S8TS9 £T/TE/S
SA08M00 ANOCLSEWOL THIL €954
9€ " T8¢ 9€°18¢ 06159 ET/T1E/S €B6999TLOTL ANI
NI SPNICTOH DIJXow¥d FYIMS BE9SL
007969 00°TZ ¥8TS9 £T/1E/S
00'SE% P8LG9 £1/TE/S
00" 08 ¥BTSY ET/TE/S £10Z 'ZE-6 AWW
SHASTEIHILNG AYIL NAS LEDSL,
00 LT 00 L $0ZS9 ET/TE/S
00° 52 $0Z59 €T/TE/S
00°T¥ ¥0Z59 £T/1E/S
004 v0ZSE9 £T/18/S
00°S YOES9 £T/T1E/S
00°z v0zs9 ET/TE/S
oo-ot ¥0259 £L/TE/5
IMN0D IADTISAL OO IS 9E95L
00°'5¢S 00 SES TYT59 ET/TE/S SEIJOOH % SANOVId
YEQ OTT SEINLSAANI N2ITSs SE9GL
00°0¢€ 00 Le £BTSS ET/TE/S
00'¢€ £815% €I/1E/% €102 '22-6 AWM
YEd TYNOIIVN HI¥LS MEATIS PESSL
£€°0ZL BT TTE 99TS9 £T/TE/S ONI¥AS MONdL YALYM
8€° 0% 99159 £T/T1E/S FIYD  ADNEL dEUVM
LLTBLE 99159 £EL/Te/S AINAL HELYM
SEIYLENANT JAILYLS UIATIS EEYSL
LO"%SS LO'TYPE PETS9 €1/1E/S ASNOHENIA ZLLS
ST BET PETSS ET/1E/S HONFJISTY ZLIS
%' €6 FETSS £T/18/9 HSNOHAWNG ZL1S
FE 2 S0E59 £T/IE/S Q¥ HONVY I¥dd 0007
BT EE 502599 €T/TE/S dOLS 1SHY IS 2 N T8t
T8'%E 50259 £I/1E/S MY HDA (Y FIIAWA TPIZ
Q2 ¥AMOA DIJIOVd VHEZIS ZTEISL
00°009°T 00°009°T 0789 ET/TE/S ISNOH FONNCH 6%TOT ANI
ILEHY ‘ZII0HDS TE9SL
8£° 089 8£°0S 00TS59 £T/1€/8 C0SL-LPB~G4L WSIHNOL DA
i QT NI SEIIA¥ES TYEQIH DES 0€95L
S£'88v°8 s€°88v'g €TZSS ET/TE/S
VIH QHEENJEE SAIUVH INIVS 629524
g8 €9¢ Z8'E9E £3159 ET/TIE/S
SOIHAYND ¥ €3M Q¥YNSTIVE 92954
z8' 18 28' 1S 96052 £I/TE/S 6098LPTSS
INI ¥SL L$0davod LZISL
00°009°2 00°000'T LPTS9 £T/TE/S WYO0Ed VIAEW TYIO0S
00°008 LFTSY €ET/T1E/S ONILENIYH 'I¥IDCS
00008 LPTS9 ET/1E/S ONILANEYW TYIDOS
ONI dady 32I5L
99" 0EL'T 99°0CT"T £0ESY ET/TE/S aNv¥s ONIDI Ha :
DTT LEOISNYYI MOOW ONIH S295L
00" €ELE 00" €LE L0ZSS £€I/TE/S FONYNEINIVH L THLNOW
TYI0L INNOWY H#SNTL qLVJ # 0/a NOILAIUDSET HILOANI BOUNEA JAERON
ADTHD ADFHD
€T/TE/5 HILSIOTH AIFHD €T/TE/50  a3eg uny

S abeg ALNOCD XE3OLS STETEd ‘oM 33odsey




9

0 BIZ'ELT

BE'LSY

EE°96¢C

00'668

B0 BYT

00" 85T
00°'T6T

00°9€C'T

9% 095'e
T0°TILg €
LB BT L
¥o 18

VLT

00°5L6
I8 0F
TYLOL
ADEHD

sbeg

INLGL SAJAHD

g% 8L
06" BLE
0081
€84
00'0T
00°02T
000
05 ¢
oc-oz
00 668

98" €9
[AA4:)

007881
00°T6T
00°z2T
00" T8T'T
00’ 0%

9% 095°C
T8'TL8°€E
L8 ¥8Y 'L
¥0°18

66'6¥F
SLTFT

00 SLE

LNOOWT

ouess
002ss

L8159
L8TS9
LBISY
L8TH9
LBISS
LBTSY
LBTS9
9PTEe

Qt1egss
6ETSS

89749
0LT92
98159
9BISY9
98TS9
BETSS
FPISS
827159
60259

69159
LETS9

9€TES

H#SNVHL

ET/TE/S
ET/TE/S

£T/TE/S
£€T/TE/S
ET/TE/S
£T/TE/S
£T/TE/S
£ET/TE/S
ET/TE/S
ET/TE/S

£I/TE/S
£T/TE/5

£I/1E/S
ET/TE/S
£€1/1e/8
£T/T1E/S
ET/1E/9
ET/18/4
€T/TE/S
€1/1E/9
ET/TE/S

€T/TE/S
£E1/18/%

ET/TE/S

HLva

A8V¥d € H4XAL dFIOADIYH
Z5¥E € HdAL QETOADEY

BSNIDIT JoNbIv

ATYM ENIM AV¥d TYIYOWIN
dd0~%00D ITIHD

ATEM ENIM

£1/%E/9

UIAUES TIVH-F

TId4IN HEILGVAV-MAL HHLYM
o0V SE¥Ed JEIIIA gIndIl

18 OdLIN'H4 'I¥0ss ' WAHDOTH

ATAUYE /ZEINOD

€10 'EZE-6 KWW

TiL LS XYl ALYEd0¥d
66FZ¥8-LO0Y ASVAT TIIZOD
TYDTALOATHE ASNOHIEN0D
HANVITD IOEANISI]

YA¥OTAXT WAT/XENYT
FDAYVE FIATEVI

ONILSEL ¥IIAYT TVINEV

NOTIAI¥JSHT H2IOANT

£T/TE/S WALSIHAY ADIHD

ALNICD AZYOLS

ONI ELEHONOD dt€

SEITI00 'TOOM

OTT YOTAEN LANLSEM

02 A14405 WIvAIN NHIISEM
YT TULNIWANOYIANT NUFLSIM

HANOIOD 0D HOHSWM

ONI SEACL ALID VINIDYUIA
SANVIHOIH ALID YINIDWIA
¥NIJ INEWAINDH dEOONYH SN
ONI d35 TYIINIOETH JILINQ

ONI JAIMITION EDUN0SIND

OTT ¥A¥AEN J0 ALIWIOAINN
ONI OLVHOETT SHELIIHIIdN
HOaNHIA

ET/TE/S0
steigd

¥5952L

£995L

29954

Te9sL
059924

6%95L

3%954
L¥OS5L
9¥9cL
T

PPos5L

£¥95L
ZvasL

HHSWNN
AITHD

a3eg unyg

ON 3z0ded




£1/3IE/9

YENQISSIWWOD

ALY ADFIHD

NOILY¥ZINOHLOY ANV MATAEY 40 INIWEOAETMONIDY

TYLOL SADEHD



AYYNINITINA

Z

abeg

FRUNSVIUL

HATTORLIWOD

YINOISS IWWOD

HANOISSINWOD NYWHIVHD

ednoan 1roxded

9L*9LE'T ipasIngs T Tel0L
T€ 08T PIOIDNPSA 031 ISISURIAL 2SN TRIOL
00" 19114 d3Q ITd uo paxraIsuexl SUOTIONDSQ 2akoTduy Te30s
0o’ :1tsodag 3o3atq asdorduz tejol
6C'6E8 iENoRY) Ssfordum Tejol
00" PEYQSYD I0TONPIT TEIOL
91" L8T ‘8dILdd I0F I9FSUBRLY, 1850 TYIOL
JUNOWY EEYS-F | # paq
/# dwg
£E/6T/50 :99BQ pUd-pOTIDG ET/¥T/50 *=23=d yo8yd Teyeeds 1adAl rroaied

aeapthboy oayDn
WALSAS TIOHAYd ALNNOD AFHOLS

PSIFUOTSSTWWOD 10 preog A3unon fazong 2yl Ag paacaddy

TERIDPIET £T/8
Y01

# o
JEELI )

/80
S0¥dq




AUMYNINITEEG

4

g

afeg

L

9

5

HIANSYHEEL

HETTCYLINOD

HANOISE THWOD YENOISSIWWOD NYWEIVHD

isdnoas troxded

PSIIUCTSETUNOD 3O paeog A3unop Asxeas ayy. Ag panroxddy

ST LRV LT PPRRANGSIg
ZE'TPL'ST FICABNPAI 0] ISIBUBII I8N
LLTS3T'E *9T114 ded ITQ UC PAIISTEURIL BuoTisupag selordug
Z21'890'12¢8 tatsodag 30eatg eddoTduxm
69 EB6E’‘E teyoeyn esfotdug
) 68 ZS8'PLT 1F¥RBYY Toaonpaq
9862260 84 10T xozsueal Iesq
JUNouY 294rg # pag
/4 Gw
€1/2C/90 :93®Q pus-potaag ET/L0/20 332 Yoaud

JasTbsy yoaud LOTTPIPT ET/S
WELSAS TIOHAYE ALNOOD RIHOLS Lk

T®3cL

T230%
Tea0],
Te3CL
Te3lQL
1e10L

TE30L

#
Fa

0/90
5044

aa

FEEEL Y

Tetnbay adAr 1teadeq

suny
taday




Licensing Board




Storey County @qmunitp Debelopment

PBuginess i  Licensging

T

P © Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk’s Office

June 10, 2013

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the June 18, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:
A. CALDERA ELECTRIC - Contractor / 508 Jackson Way ~ Carson City
B. KALEN JOHNSON - General / 1480 Grey Bluff Drive ~ Fernley
C. COOL BREEZE REFRIGERATION, INC. — Contractor / 72 Webb Circle ~ Reno
D. BUCK’S PLUMBING & HEATING — Contractor / 275 Gallaway Lane ~ Reno

LICENSING BOARD

SECOND READINGS:
A. QUEEN OF SPADES — General / 11 North C Street vC
B. VIRGINIA CITY MINING COMPANY - General / 171 South C Street vC
C. COMMERCIAL RESTROOM SOLUTIONS, LLC — 1379 Waterloo Lane ~ Gardnerville
D. BULETTE’S RESTAURANT & SALOON — General / 5 North C Street vC
E. NEVADA DISTRIBUTION SERVICES, LLC — General / 625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI
F. SCHWABE NORTH AMERICA, INC. — General / 2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI
G. MARS PETCARE US -- General / 725 Waltham Way TRI
H. VIRGINIA CITY KETTLE CORN DEPOT — General / 188 South C Street vC
I. HOT POT, LLC - General / 420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 TRI
J. AMERICAN ARMS DELTA -- General / 224 Easy Sydney Drive, Suite B TRI
K. BATTLE BORN MUNITIONS, INC. - General / 625 Waltham Way TRI

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriffs Office
Austin Osborneg, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor's Office




Legislative Session Update




Vanessa Dufresne \/

m

From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2013 8:51 AM
To: Vanessa Dufresne

Subject: June 18th Agenda Items
Morning V-

Here’s what | have for the agenda.

YDISCUSSION ONLY: Greg Hess, Mary Walker and Maggie Lowther — Recap and highlights of the recently concluded 2013
Legislative Session and Special Session.

\/15ISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Renew, extend or allow to expire a lease on County owned property known as the Gold
Hill Depot between Storey County and Gold Hill Historical Society.

Jen M will have the annual raise of water and sewer rates as well as awarding the fuel bids. See you in a while.

Pat Whitten
1. County Manager
Storey County

(775) 847-0968 (Office)
(775) 721-7001 (Cell)

PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org

powered by: visionASP




Vanessa Dufresne

From: : Maggie Lowther

Sent: Monday, June 03, 2013 7:55 AM
To: Vanessa Dufresne

Subject: agenda 18th.

Monday the 3rd.

Vanessa, Mary Walker and Associates wants on the Agenda for the 18th. Commissioners meeting to report on the 77th.
Legislative Session. Ask Pat for any details or where on the Agenda he wants her.

Maggie




License Modification




05/30/2013 THU 14:38 FAX 7758470924 Sheriff Business Office [fool/o001

Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy fot placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all tequests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Ttems received afier the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of 2 subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting:06-18-13 Date Request Submitted: 05-30-13

Agenda Item Requested: Modification to existing License of VC Outlaws. Adding Marla J. Mckechnie as
an Primary Owner.

This item is intended for: [ ] Discussion Only Discussion and Action (at the Board’s discretion)

[l Supporting documentation is attached [ No supporting documentation is necessary
Requested by:  Melissa A. Field

(please print name clearly)

Address: 2058.Cst
Phone: 775-847-0959 Email (optional):

Please submit this compietcd form to:
or FAX to:

Storey Couﬁty Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
Virginia City NV 89440

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

— ... Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope: - - -« - - —»

Date Request Received: &5 / A Received: [ ] InPerson [JfVia FAX By: @
[_] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages N /d Meeting date of this item: (g 7'/8

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email Vdixon@stomycounty.org




Approval of Union Agreement




Vanessa Dufresne
[ L

Mo na - — e
From: Austin Osborne
Sent: Monday, June 10, 2013 7:57 AM
To: Vanessa Dufresne
Cc: Pat Whitten
Subject: Closed Session Agenda Request

Hello Vanessa,
I would like to add the following language to the June 18 Commission agenda to precede the general session:

/ 1. CALLTO ORDER at 12:00 P.M. {Closed meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220(4) for the purpose of conferring with
the County’s management regarding labor negotiations.)

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,
Austin

Austin Osborne
Administrative Officer & Senior Planner
Storey County Courthouse
Box 176 Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: 775.847.0968
Cell: 775.291.4693
Fax: 775.847.0949
agosborne@storeycounty.org

Storey County is an Equaf Opportunity Provider.

CONFIDENTIALITY DISCLAIMER:

This e-maifl and any attachments are intended only for use by the addressee(s) named herein and may contain leaally
privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient, any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this e-mail and any attachments is strictly prohibited. If vou have received this e-mail in error, please
immediately notify me and permanently delete the original and alf copies and printouts of this e-mail and any
attachments.




Vanessa Dufresne
L.

U R
From: Austin Oshorne
Sent: Monday, June 10, 2013 8:28 AM
To: Vanessa Dufresne
Cc: Pat Whitten; Biil Maddox; Hugh Gallagher
Subject: Agenda Language: CBA for General Session

Hello Vanessa,

| would like to add the following language to the general Commission session for June 18. | am sure there will be
adjustments at today’s agenda meeting with Bill Maddox. i plan to attend that meeting today if | that is of help.

/DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approvai of modifications and extension of the Agreement between Storey County
(Employer} and Storey County Employee’s Association {Union) also referred to as AFSCME Local Union, Comstock
Chapter.

Thanks,
Austin

Austin Osborne

Administrative Officer & Senior Planner
Storey County Courthouse

Box 176 Virginia City, NV 89440

Office: 775.847.0968

Cell: 775.291.4693

Fax: 775.847.0949
agsbhorne@storeycounty.org

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider.

CONFIDENTIALITY DISCLAIMER:

This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for use by the addressee(s) named herein and may contain leqaily

immediately notify me and permanently delete the original and all copies and printouts of this e-maif and any

attachments.




Resolution 13-373




Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

‘The Storey County Boatd of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a tequest for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Items teceived after the deadline will be Pplaced
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting. )

Date of Meeting: June 18, 2013 Date Request Submitted: 6-10-2013
Resolution 13-373 Setting of Salaries _'
This item is intended for: [ [Consent Agenda B/Discussion and Action (at the Board's discretion)
Supporting documentation is attached [_] No supporting documentation is necessary
Requested by: _ Jessie Fain
(please print name clearly)
Address:
Phone: , Email (optional):
Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:
Storey County Clerk’s Office
Y ty Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
AW (775) 8470921
Virginia City NV 89440
«—— ... Fold at Arrows Ifere and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - - - - -

For Office Use Only

Date Request Received: g lo /10 Received: pATn Person [ ] ViaFAX By@

E«}/Supporting documentation attached - # of pages 4t

Meeting date of this item: (o /1 B

[] Ttem Approved for Agenda by: , Date:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne@storeycounty.org




RESOLUTION NO. 13-373

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES OF ELECTED COUNTY
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES FIXED BY ORDINANCE OR
RESOLUTION PER NRS. 245.043 FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS AND
NRS 245.045 FOR APPOINTED OFFICIALS.

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS, STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA:

WHEREAS, for the purposes of NRS 245.210 and NRS. 4.040 The Board of
County Commissioners has authority to establish the salaries of all appointed county and
elected officers and employees by the enactment of a resolution.

WHEREAS, the salaries shall be set by the General Salary Schedule (Attachment
A) for the appointed salary grades and for the Fire Department appointed salary schedule
(Attachment B) adopted by this resolution and they are as follows:

Administrative Officer Grade 137
Assistant Communications Director Grade 124
Automotive/Equipment Specialist Grade 130
Battalion Chief Grade 136
Chief Deputy Sheriff Grade 136
Communications Director Grade 137
Community Development Director Grade 148
Comptroller Grade 148
County Manager Grade 157
Court Bailiff Grade 116
Deputy District Attorney Grade 144
Division Chief Grade 143
Emergency Management Coordinator Grade 124
Facilities Maintenance Coordinator Grade 122
Fire Chief Grade 148
IT Director Grade 143
Licutenant Grade 136
Management Analyst [ Grade 124
Management Analyst II Grade 134
Public Works Director Grade 148
Senior Planner Grade 134
Tourism and Community Services Director Grade 148
Tourism and Marketing Manager Grade 124




WHEREAS, each employee who is capped in the ten-step salary schedule shall
receive a two (2%) percent Cost of Living increase July 1 sach year. Each employee
who is not capped in the ten-step salary schedule shall receive a Cost of Living increase
equal to fifty (50%) percent of any PERS increase for that year, if there is no PERS
increase (every other year) no Cost of Living increase will be granted.

WHEREAS, the salaries shall be set by the Storey County Board of
Commissioners as follows:

Emergency Management Director $ 21,678
Government Affairs Director $ 30,000
Justice of the Peace $ 63,403

WHEREAS, salaries are set by the Nevada Legislature and County
Commissioners are set for as follows:

Assessor $ 63,403
Commissioners $ 27,371
Clerk/Treasurer $ 63,403
District Attorney $ 108,998
Recorder $ 63,403
Sheriff $ 86,127

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS, by unanimous vote, to adopt Resolution 13-373 providing for the
setting of salaries for the appointed officials not represented by a bargaining unit and the
elected officials.

This resolution shall be effective on the 1st, day of July, 2013.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of June, 2013.

THOSE VOTING AYE:
THOSE VOTING NAY:
STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
William Sjovangen, Chairman
ATTEST:

CLERK TO THE BOARD




£4£-g) voinjosay

-"98Z SUN A

pasnbal :o__.o:uw‘_ Aejes gyad oY) snuly “Jeak yoes asealou Buiam Jo 1s00 usaad ?\o.m.v OM] B BAIDDBL |{BUYS Sinpayos Alejes deys-ue) auy) Ul paddes st oum safoidwe Y283 -1 ON aes
S5°609'8FT  |TT +85°€vT [£6 8z2°'8ET VPETZEQ'PET 165°+05°'62T |szUszriseT £6°E68'02T |T2'S08°'9TT [69°558°2TT ¥£'6£0°60T 09l
£6 v86 T 1/0°280°0¥T 06 ¥¥E'SET Y1 89/ °0€T [¥6°Ste'97T [IF E£20°72T 62°S¥6 LTT |6/°956°ETT [0T £OT ‘OIT Y8 64E 00T 651
TZ°8yy TFT [£#°SO0°0ET 108 EFO'ZET 29784521 |#E ¥92°€ZT  |T0°960 611 85°890'STT |SE /T TIT {997 /T 201 0Z°58.°c0T 85T
S/°866° 26T |bT 2ec'ecT gz cz8 82T [00° zo0v vex 68°267°0¢T €2 T6T'OTT €07 7927 7T T2°59%°'80T 1227262 ‘v0T 987 €57 TOT £ST
Z6°ZE9'FET (€T 080°0:T |oz°189'szT Itz tev'ter LLVZELTT {62 ZSE'ETT [€6°€25°60T T¢'078°SOT |89 T+Z‘Z0T |92 +8./°86 95T
6L 6VE 'TET |vb 206°97T [08°ST9°ZZT 8¥ 69F‘8TT [6T £9% +TIT |89v z65'0TT T19°258°90T |£2°6£2'€0T |86 /¥L'66 88 ¥2E'96 SST
95 'SPT'8ZT |PT'ZT8°€ZT [L1°629'6TIL 86°645°STT [T+ TZ9'TIT |OT 568 .0T S¥ 9¥Z v0T |02 TZ2°00T [TT'SIE‘/6 22°%20'¥6 ¥ST
S0°020°SeT IE€°267'02T |8b 202°9TT 96°09L°ZTT {12 /%6°'80T |15° €92 50T S8°E0ZTOT |85 +97'86 25 TP6 ¥6 00 TEL'TH £ST
8/°046'TZT [LI°9¥8'/TT [96°098'€TT 69°0T0°0TT [S¥ 06Z2°90T |TT-969°Z0T L2°£22'66 88°/08°%6 26°529'26 99 £6¥°68 Z8T
88666 8TT |/8°T/6°VIT |/8°€80°TLT |0S°£2Z€ 20T |66 Z69°€0T | T61 00T |6T £08°96  |r9 625 6 9/°09£'06 |68 0TE" 48 TST
PSE6Q'9TT (89" JOTTZIT |09 7€ 80T |57 607 +0T LL°99T°TOT |£9° /%4776 YL Zvt b6 P 8¥Z 16 mw.mwﬁ‘wm SE°T9T°¢8 QST
66 T9Z ETT |88 ISV 60T |2z TEZ°SOT 98°SST‘Z0T lvZ T0/°86 ¥5 €95 'S6 L9 BET 76 £8°220°68 RE"ZT0°98 9/ €0T €S 6F1
TS 66 0TT |18°292°90T |T¥ 2sT €01 SZ 79966 06°£62°96 T2°/£0'€6 6f "I68 68 L5 T58'98 TS FI6ES £8°90°18 StT
0¥ v08 20T {¥8°8ST‘¥0T |6+ 9£9°00T IV EET 46 9256 E6 6£°89/°'06 76°869'/8 P EEL' P8 28°/98°'18 SE°660'6/ L¥L
EQ'S/T'SOT 18" RTO°TOT |S6°TI8T 96 £8°198°v6 26 £59°T6 ES 155°88 Z6°655°6S8 £5°999°79 SO°T/8°67 0T 0T 22 9T
8/°609'20T {88 6ET'66 92°187°56 9T 8¥5 76 St 91+ 63 99" +6£ ‘93 BO €Lt EQ Z£°059'08 267226 22 0628252 SHPT
60°20T°00T |¥8'TZ2/°06 86 0S¥ '£6 68 062 ‘06 {57 /E2' /8 8 /87 'v3 9T "/f+'18 Y2 £89°8/ Zr zen‘ ol 9 TSP'EL ¥PT
9¥°599'/6 L2 79E "' 16 69°T/1°16 £9°830° 88 8/'601°58 69°TEZ 78 88'05¥'6/ YT $92°94 TZ 89T 1/ IL 099 ‘TS £¥T
LETEBZ'SH ¥Z°190°26 66 /688 OT 06 58 £6°££0'E8 ¥ 92¢°08 SOTETS 22 587168 V. £2°65E" 2/ 0£° 27669 Zr1
8£°656°'26 $2°5T8 68 £679//°98 90" prR‘£8 ¥0°600°'T8 DE 6978/ 6t 7¢9°S/ 2275902 LE 65 0L ¢T° /0289 IFT
80°769°06 TZ°529°/9 86199 '$8 80°667°12 88 2062 67°09f 9/ 0 82/ g T €87 TZ 95°2/2'89 ¥SEPS 09 OFT
£0°08% 98 20°88+v°S8 0" 265°'¢8 86°£08°6/ 9z 80T 2/ P8 L6% ¥s L5846 'TL £S5 ¥¥5 69 ¥.L 26T /9 Z5°026'¥9 6ET
20°72£°98 ¥6 20+ £8 6 78508 SG /5877 ¥9 pez‘cs 28°089'¢/ 00°£22'04 2578y /9 06°£55°¢9 60 ZEE°¢€o 8¢T
19°9T2‘#8 £/°89£'T8 90 21992 85°856'5/ 06" 68E £/ ET° 806 04 S 01589 8F E6T 99 20°'556'€9 82°26L'19 LET
¥S 291'28 ZT " #3E'6L 257669 9/ Y6 SO0T ‘¥4 06666 T/ $9°'8/1'69 97 °6£8°99 T0645°F9 $T°56£°'29 ST'S82°09 OfT
85 85T ‘08 £6°Lvy 12 587878 ¢/ 8y 867'¢s 96°£58'69 L2E°T6¥' 19 ¥0°60¢"° 59 T6°E00°€9 TE'E/8°09 8/ ¥TR'8S SET
6% £0Z7°87 5685564 92 £00°E/ 01" S£5°0s I8 6FT 89 ¥Z S¥8'59 25879 £9 £2°20%'19 09 88E ‘65 L2°08g° 26 FET
60°962°'9/ ¥0'9T/ '€l L1°€22' 1L £L° 41889 29 28+°99 9 6ET VO 06°990°29 £0°896 65 0T 0F6' 28 SZ 08655 €T
TZ SEV ¥4 60°8T6'TZ 20798+ °69 ZE'OET 29 26598 "'$9 P 7979 80°£55°09 6E 505 8¢S £6°925°9¢9 LE'ST19 S CET
2L 6192/ 86 E9T 0L Y2 T6." 29 58°'86v ‘59 127 £82°'¢€9 98 " £+T ‘19 1792065 Yy 82046 EZ RPT S¢S 67 £87°¢S IET
TS 9v8'0s £9°25¥°89 08 ZET'a9 ZE°T06 €9 LETOVL'TO G6°759°66 82 5£0° /¢ 82°989'¢¢ ST €08 €S 04°€86'TS 0ET
6% 07T'69 60°€£8/°99 89°$725'¥9 S ZFE' 29 0S"¥EZ 00 19°/6T°8S 5622 '99 80 82f ‘9 88 06¥'258 T8°STL'0S 621
£9°VEV 2O £2°$ST° 59 16°056°29 6T 2728 09 9£ 69786 9T 8//'9% 60°958'¥¢ 00" E00°£S 29°012'T§ £8 8.V 67 gel
88°68/°¢9 0T 595'¢€9 ES"STFT9 7785865 90" ZEE' 26 ZEE6E"SS 80 025 ‘€S S2°0TZ°TS 85 196 '6b £0° 222 8% LEL
¥Z " S8T " +9 PLEFTI0 T9 85 /1665 P I68' /6 2/ ££6° 66 92 Z2v0 " t¢ 2L ¥TZ'Zs 20" 6tF ‘05 I0° €y’ 8y 99°¥60‘ /¥ 9cl
¥ 260°T9 IS°920°'6% Ik DED' LS 06 TOT'SS IS 8£2 €S 02" 89 'T8 T. 869 '6F 0T 8TO' 8% 62 V6E ‘9% 8€°528 v el
29°'8+T 8¢ 82°Z8T'9% 8€ 782 %S 82 9¥% 26 8T £/9°0S 29°656 8y S £0E ' LF ZE 0L 58 94" 85T ¥ S 699 7y el
b2 oyE'SS TT SLv°ES 52999 °TS 09°6T6'6¥ L7 TEZ'8F L 009 9F 65 20 sy £0°20S'E¥ S6°0£0' 2y 65609 ‘OF 0ci
78°'966°'€S P8 02T 26 85 °90F ‘0% 0" 20/ '8t 60°550' /¥ 88 £94 Sy 2V 926 'E¥ I0° ItV v 18°S00°TH TT 619 °6¢ BLE
ZF IFT 08 T8 Sty 8% £57208'9% 69 22 sk ££°S69'cY £L7/12'2y ¥0°064 ‘0 69 0Tt 6E 26722088 87°06/°9¢ gl
67 °T9S 9% 72986 ‘' ¥¥ SP S0y ey 297566 ‘TF 9r 5/5 0OF SE'E02 ' 68 29248 /¢ ¥27965°9¢ BT '68£ 'S¢ E¥ EOT b ClLi
8/ 9€Z'¢h 99 vLL T 66°T9E‘OF TT /66'8¢ YE 8/9' /€ TZ ¥0F*9E ET ELT"S¢E 7/ €86 €€ 05 bER‘ 28 PT F22°TE 0L}

apeln)

0T 6 2 L 9 g 4 £ Z T daig

- ¥T0Z/0£/9 YBNOWY €T0Z/T/L AMVIVS TVINNY: | ¥ usmydeIY

anpayog Alejeg |eigusg




€.E-¢1 uoinjosay

S8'ZEE'B0T  Zv°699'H0T TR'6ZL'TOT  $0°0TL'/6
SY'0SL'S6  ZS°ZIS'Z6  TO'YBE68 v TOE 08
TS'TSS'08  2$°/28'/2  99°S6I'S/  837259'%/

8L°S0v‘¥6  ¥E'ETZ'T6  T8°8ZT'88  09°8YT'SY  £1°692'78  60°8b'6L 8T
96°0VV'€8  0E'6T9'08  TO'€68°'/L 96°852°S. E6°ETL'%L
86°S6T'0L T2 zz8°/9  69°825°'S9  SL°TUE'€9 T/ TLT'TO

T0°SSZ'0L €41

60" £0T 65 9T

or | 6 ! 8 _ L

9 | 5 | ¥ [ £ |

[4

r ]

Ld3a 3yTd

¥T0Z/0E/9 UBNOJUL £T0Z/T/L AUVIVS TVINNY

8 1UBUYDRIIY

8inpayag Aejes |eisues)




Resolution 13-374




Vanessa Dufresne

b T N AV
From: Gary Hames

Sent; Monday, June 03, 2013 12:39 PM

To: Pat Whitten; Vanessa Dufresne

Cc: Mike Klug; Bill Maddox

Subject: June 18, 2013 Agenda Item Request

Attachments: Amended Resolution Dissolving the Storey County NRS 473.doc; Staff Reccomendation

- NDF Dissolution 6-18-13.doc

Hi Pat/VVanessa,

|——Can the aftached resolution please be placed on-the June 18, 2013 Commissioners Agenda? Below-is possible language———— |
- for the item. |

v/ DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution Number 13-374 for the Dissolution of NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection
District. The new Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP) will replace the need for the NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection
District.

There is also a staff recommendation attached for the Commissioners review.
If you need anything further please let me know,

Thanks,

Gary Hames, Fire Chief

Storey County Fire Protection District

145 N. "C" Street

Post Office Box 603

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Office: (775) 847-0954

Fax: (775) 847-0987

Mission Statement: Be Nice, Solve Problems and Serve Community

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed. This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named
addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you have

| received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that
disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.




Post Office Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0954 Phone * (775) 847-0987 Fax
WWW.storeycounty.org

NT

Meeting Date:: June 18, 2013
Agenda ltem: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution Number 13-374 for the Dissolution

of NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection District. The new Wildland Fire Protection Program
(WFPP) will replace the need for the NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection District.

Summary Notes: This is the final step to a multi-year approach to addressing wild land fires within the
boundaries of Storey County. In March you signed the WFPP Agreement and Storey
County/Storey County Fire Protection District Agreement. The final step in this
process is to dissolve the NRS 473 NDF Fire Protection District.

Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution No. to dissolve the NRS 473 NDF Fire
: Protection District. ' '
Station 1 Station 2 Station 3 Station 4 Station 5
145 North C Street 2610 Carrwright Road 500 Sam Clemnens 431 Canyon Way 1705 Peru Drive
Virginia City, NV 89440 Reno, NV 89521 Dayton, NV 89403 Sparks, NV 89434 Sparks, NV 89434

(775) 847-0954 (775) 847-0071 - (775) 246-7979 (775) 342-0220 (775)343-3300




RESOLUTION NO 13-374

A RESOLUTION DISSOLVING THE STOREY COUNTY NRS 473 (NEVADA
DIVISION OF FORESTRY) AND OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING
THERETO

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS,
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

WHEREAS, the Storey County NRS 473 (NDF) Fire Protection District was properly
organized pursuant to NRS 473; and

WHEREAS, NRS Chapter 473 allows the reorganization of the “473 District” into
Storey County by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners in which the “473
District” is located; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners resolves that the reorganization herein
described is desired, feasible and in the best interest of Storey County.

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desire that the area currently serviced by the
Storey County NRS 473 (NDF) Fire Protection District be annexed by, Storey County; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Storey County NRS 473 (NDF)
Fire Protection District as created by the Board of Commissioners, July 12, 1974, is dissolved
effective July 1, 2013,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Storey County
Commissioners, by unanimous vote, adopt this Resolution dissolving the Storey County
NRS 473 (NDF) Fire Protection District as created by the Board of Commissioners, July 12,
1974.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be effective on the 1st day of
July 2013.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this day of 18™ day of June 2013.

THOSE VOTING AYE

THOSE VOTING NAY




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Bill Sjovangen, Chairman

ATTEST:

Vanessa DuFresne Date
Storey County Clerk




Resolution 13-376




Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Stotey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Ttems recetved after the deadline will be Pplaced
on the agenda of a subsequent mecting.)

Date of Meeting: June 18, 2013 Date Request Submitted: 6-10-2013
Resolution 13-376 Augment the NRS 474 Storey County Fire Protection District Fund —
This item is intended for: [ |Consent Agenda [ | Discussion and Action (af the Board’s discretion)
Supporting documentation is attached [] No supporting documentation is necessary
Requested by: ~ Jessie Fain
(please print name clearly)
Address:
Phone: Email (optional):
Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:
Storey County Clerk’s Office
Y ty Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
e (775) 847-0921
Virginia City NV 89440
— ... Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in 2 Window Envelope - - - - - —

For Office Use Only
Date Request Received: {g / 10 Received: [“A'In Person [] via FAX By: vV
3 Supporting documentation attached - # of pages | Meseting date of this item: (9 /[
[ | Item Approved for Agenda by: , Date:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne@storeycounty.org




RESOLUTION # 13-376

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2012/2013 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY
FIRE FUND.

WHEREAS, total resources of the FIRE FUND, Storey County were budgeted to
be $ 3,835,518.00 on July 1, 2012; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be
$4,220,084.00.

WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:
CHARGES FOR SERVICES  $ 384,566.00
Total $384,566.00
WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the FIRE FUND.

Now, therefore, it is hereby RESOLVED, that the NRS 474 Storey County Fire
Protection District shall augment its 2012/2013 budget by appropriating
$384,566.00 for use in the FIRE FUND, thereby increasing its appropriations for
salary and wages from $1,829,299.00 to $1,882,656.00, increasing services
and supplies from 276,327 to $603,536 and increasing capital outlay from
$34,000 to $38,000. A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by
reference is made a part thereof.

JT ES FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk Treasurer shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED the __18th _ of the June, 2013.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:
William Sjovangen, Chairman of the NRS 474 Storey County Fire
Protection District Board

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk




Propane and Fuel Bid




Vanessa Dufresne
I

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Vanessa,

Jennifer McCain

Monday, June 10, 2013 2:03 AM
Vanessa Dufresne

Agenda item

Can you please put on this next agenda:
Y 1)  Resolution 12-379 Water/Sewer rate increase = water Board

» 2) Fuel bid acceptance for vehicle fuel and propane

When do | need to have the actual resolution to you?

Fuel bid opening is June 13 @ 10am, so | can get you those results afterwards if you need them,

Thanks,
Jennifer




Resolution 13-379




RESOLUTION 13-379

A RESOLUTION MAKING CHANGES TO WATER RATES
FOR SERVICE IN VIRGINIA CITY, GOLD HILL, AND SILVER
CITY AND SEWER RATES FOR SERVICE IN VIRGINIA CITY
AND GOLD HILL.

WHEREAS, Storey County Code 13.10.010 provides that the Storey County
Commissioners may establish water and sewer service rates by resolution, and

WHEREAS, additional cost of operation of the water and sewer treatment plant,
construction and maintenance on the present water and sewer systems will
require additional funds to be paid for by increasing the rates of the water and
sewer users of the systems as explained in the Storey County Rate Analysis
completed by Farr West Engineering 2011.

1. WATER RATES
a. Water Hookup (basic % inch within 50 ft of main lines):
i. Residential $2,500.00
ii. Commercial $4,100.00
b. Permit extension fee: (based on minimum yearly water service
rates)
i. Residential $374.64 ($31.22 X 12)
ii. Commercial $537.60 ($44.80 X 12)
Water Deposit $100.00 on all accounts.
Monthly Service base rate:
i. Residential base rate will increase $4.11 to bring the
minimum base rate from $24.22 to $28.33 monthly for the
first 2000 gallons of water usage; each additional 1000
gallons of water usage will be charged $2.70 monthly.
ii. Commercial base rate will increase $5.90 to bring the
minimum base rate from $37.80 to $43.70 monthly for the
first 2000 gallons of water usage; each additional 1000
gallons of water usage will be charged $3.61 monthly.
iii. Monthly minimum will be charged for all metered accounts
regardless of usage.
iv. Construction Water: Administrative billing fee: $37.80 per
month, $3.61 per each 1,000 gallons.
e. In addition to the monthly water usage rates a surcharge of $7.00
per month will be applied to all accounts as required by USDA.
f. Late charge of 4% of unpaid balance accrued monthly.
g. Reconnection fee $60.00 for nonpayment of billing must be paid
before water service is restored.
i. If this fee and past due balance is not paid within one (1)
month of disconnection, service will be entirely disconnected

oo




and a fee of $1200.00 (residential), $2000.00 (Commercial)
plus entire batance will be required before service is re-
established
h. Residential discount of 10% on water charges for Senior citizens
over 85 (proof of age required) upon approval of the Public Works
Director. Service account holder and discount applicant must be
one in the same.
i. Voluntary Disconnection of service:

i. Temporary Disconnection: Customers may opt to
disconnect service for a period of three (3) or more months.
A disconnect form must be completed prior to disconnection.
Charges will be half of the current minimum monthly water
and sewer (when applicable) service rates. To reconnect
service a fee of $60 will be assessed.

ii. Total Disconnection: Customer may opt to completely
disconnect service. A disconnect form must be completed
prior to disconnection. No monthly charges will be assessed.
Restoral of service will require a fee of $1200.00
(Residential), $2000.00 (Commercial).

2. SEWER RATES
a. Sewer Hookup (within 50 ft of main lines):
i. Residential $3,300.00
ii. Commercial $4,800.00
b. Monthly Service rate:
. Residential monthly flat rate will increase $4.02 to bring the
minimum base rate from $23.71 to $27.73
ii. Commercial base rate will increase $7.09 for first 2000
gallons of water usage increasing the minimum base rate
from $30.68 to $37.77 and for each additional 1000 gallons
of water usage sewer charges will be billed an additional
$2.14 computed monthly.
c. In addition to the monthly sewer service rate a sewer capitalization
surcharge $4.00 per month wili be applied to all accounts.
d. Late charge of 4% of unpaid balance accrued monthly.

THEREFORE BE T RESOLVED, that the Storey County Commissioners water
rate increase and sewer rate increase is hereby approved, the previous water
and sewer rate Resolution 11-336 is hereby revoked by the adoption of this
resolution 12-342. Said rates shall be effective commencing on the 1% day of
July 2013 untii further adjustments are made by resolution of this board.




This resolution shall be effective on the day of

THOSE VOTING AYE:

2013.

THOSE VOTING NAY:

ABSENT:

BY:

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS




Gold Hill Depot Lease




[PatWhitten e
From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Friday, June 07, 2013 10:22 AM

To: 'kfegeri@aies.net'

Subject: Gold Hill Depot Lease

Kim,

Just a quick note to let you know | am ready to put the Depot lease on agenda for the June 18% meeting. 2:00 is the start
time although it usually takes a while to get thru the preceding stuff.

Pat

~Patwhitten
. County Manager
: : Storey County

(775) 847-0968 (Office)
(775) 721-7001 (Cell)

PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org
powered by: visionASP




LEASE,
vt N s
THIS LEASE is entered into this % day of _ b\da%’ﬂ' "

_m,_ﬂmw.m.ammmmiommaswwfm% ~(hereinafter ...
referred to as “Lessor”), and the Gold Hill Historical Society, a nonprofit corporation, (hereinafter

referred to as “Lessee”).

WHEREAS, NRS 244.270 gives the boards of county commissions power and
jurisdiction in their respective counties to control and manage the property, real and personal,
belonging to the county, and

WHEREAS, the Truckee Railroad Depot at Gold Hill, Nevada is the property of Lessor,
and

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to utilize said property as a museum, and
NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES agree as follows:

1. Lessor hereby leases to Lessee for a period of five years from the date hereof, the.
aforesaid depot property, which is particularly described in Exhibit “A” annexed hereto and .
incorporated herein by this reference.

2. Rent shall be one dollar ($1.00) per year, due and payable upon the “signing of this
lease.

3. Lessee agrees to rehabilitate the said depot for the display and operation of railroad
equipment, and to maintain the premises as a historical monument commemorating the Virginia
and Truckee Railroad, and to operate a museum and ticket office and other railroad related
activities. In addition Lessee shall construct the six foot high board fence enclosure referred to
in his letter to Lessor dated February 24, 2008, annexed hereto as Exhibit B.

4. The Lease shall not be assignable, nor may the premises be sublet to any other party




5. Lessee agrees to hold I;é.nnless and indemnify the Lessor from any damages or causes of
action arising from the use of the premises and agrees further to insure the premises and Lessor with
adequate public liability and property damage insurance in the event the premises are open to the
general public,

6. It is further agreed that any third party successful in rehabilitating the Virginia and
Truckee Railroad from Virginia City to Gold Hil, or from Gold Hill to Carson City, as the case may
be, shall have access rights to the depot for the purpose of loading and unloading passengers,
pénding an agreement for access and maintenance with said party.

7. Inthe event the premises are sold, Lessee shall have the right of first refusal, provided, -

fhowever, that Lessor may convey the premises to the owner of the Virginia and Truckee Railroad.

8. Lesseeagreesto maintafn the leased premises in reasonable condition during the term of
the lease agreement.

9. Lessor reserves the right to make improvements and may change or remodel the leased

- premises during the lease term if necessary to meet the needs of Lessor or the Virginia and Truckee
Railroad.

10. This lease may be terminated by either party upon 60 days written notice.

11. This lease shall terminate if Lessee ceases to use the premises for the above-stated
purposes or the Lessee ceases to exist.

12, The terms of this lease may not be amended except by an instrument in writing executed

by the parties hereto.

13. This agreement shall be é;nstrued in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada
and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Nevada.

14, Lessee and Lessor hereby agree and consent to subject themselves to, and agree that




veiwse shall be properly in the State of Nevada, County of Storey, for the purpose of any litigation
or legal proceedings initiated hereunder in State or Federal Court.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and

year first above written.

Chalrman ,-Storey County Board of Commissioners

A'ITESTE x s 2

o e

KIMFEGERT ©
President, Gold Hill Historical Society
STATEOFNEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )

Onthe D) day of , 2008, personally appeared before me,

a Notary Public in and for said State, _K_n;nF egert ... .. ; President, Gold Hiil
Historical Society, known to me (or proved to me) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

foregomg document and who acknowledged that e executed same. |




A PARCEL OF LAND THAT IS LOCATED IN A PORTION OF SECTION 31, T17N,
R 21 E, MDM, COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA, AND BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS

BEGINNING AT A POINT WHICH IS LOCATED ON THE CENTERLINE OF THE
VIRGINIA AND TRUCKEE RAITLROAD MAINLINE AS SHOWN ON THE UNRECORDED
STATION MAP, GOLD HILL, STOREY COUNTY NEVADA, LANDS TRACKS AND
STRUCTURES, VIRIGNIA AND TRUCKEE RAILWAY, OFFICE OF THE CHIEF
ENGINEER, CARSON CITY, NEVADA, DATED DECEMBER 31, 1916, SHEET V-1, S-
14a, SAID MAP BEING ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT C, SAID POINT BEING
LOCATED AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINE OF SAID RAILWAY
MAINLINE WITH THE NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF UNION STREET
AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP AND AS SHOWN ON THE OFFICIAL MAP OF GOLD HILL
AS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER, STOREY COUNTY,
SAID POINT BEING LOCATED AT APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE STATION 2641-+42 AS
SCALED FROM SAID RAILWAY MAP, SAID POINT BEING THE TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE ALONG THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES AS
SHOWN ON SAID OFFICIAL MAP OF GOLD HILL: :
1) THENORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF UNION STREET IN A A
* “SOUTHEASTERLY DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 25 FEET MORE OR LESS TOs, 5%
THE INTERSECTION OF SAID NORTHEASTERLY LINE WITH THE NORTHERLY . **
LINE OF YELLOW JACKET; THENCE
2) ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF YELLOW JACKET IN AN EASTERLY
DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 125 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE
INTERSECTION OF SAID NORTHERLY LINE WITH THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF— |
WAY LINE OF TELEGRAPH STREET; THENCE
3) SOUTHERLY A DISTANCE OF 30 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE INTERSECTION
OF SAID WESTERLY LINE OF TELEGRAPH STREET WITH THE SOUTHERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF YELLOW JACKET; THENCE
4) ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE OF YELLOW JACKET IN A WESTERLY
'DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 145 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE
INTERSECTION OF SAID SOUTHERLY LINE WITH THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF UNION STREET; THENCE
5) THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF UNION STREET IN A SOUTHERLY
DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 85 FEET MORE OR LESS TO AN ANGLE POINT IN
SAID EASTERLY LINE; THENCE
6) THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF UNION STREET IN A SOUTHERLY
DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 160.00 FEET; THENCE
7) THENCE IN A WESTERLY DIRCETION AT A 90° ANGLE TO SAID EASTERLY
LINE OF UNION STREET, A DISTANCE OF 25 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE
' WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF UNION STREET; THENCE
8) ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE.OF UNION STREET IN A NORTHERLY
DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 20 FEET MORE OR LESS TO AN ANGLE POINT IN

Exhibit A




2
SAID LINE; THENCE o |

8) ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF UNION STREET IN A NORTHERLY
DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 70 FEET MORE OR LESS TO AN ANGLE POINT IN
SAID LINE; THENCE

9) ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF UNION STREET IN A NORTHERLY
DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 80 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE INTERSECTION
OF SAID WESTERLY LINE OF UNION STREET WITH THE CENTERLINE OF THE
RAILWAY MAINLINE AT APPROXIMATE STATION 2640+50 AS SHOWN ON
SAID VIRGINIA AND TRUCKEE RAILWAY MAP;

THENCE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF THE RAILWAY MAINLINE AS SHOWN ON
SAID VIRGINIA AND TRUCKEE RAILWAY MAP THE FOLT.OWING COURSES
AND DISTANCES:

10) ALONG A TANGENT IN'A NORTHERLY DIRECTION, A DISTANCE OF 15 FEET
MORE OR LESS TO THE PC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT AT STATION
2640+65.61; THENCE |

11) ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT WITH A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 18°44’
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 76 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM AN EASEMENT AS DESCRIBED IN GRANT OF
EASEMENT RECORDED IN BOOK___,PAGE___ . OF OFFICIAL RECORDS IN
THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER, STOREY COUNTY.

THIS DESCRIPTION WAS COMPILED FROM RECORD AS SHOWN ON THE OFFICIAL
MAP OF GOLD HILL AS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER,
STOREY COUNTY ON JUNE 19, 1865 AND FROM THE UNRECORDED STATION MAP,
GOLD HILL, STOREY COUNTY NEVADA, LANDS TRACKS AND STRUCTURES,
VIRIGNIA AND TRUCKEE RAILWAY, OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER, CARSON
CITY, NEVADA, DATED DECEMBER 31%, 1916, SHEET V-1, S-14a, SAID MAP BEING
ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT C, .

7/22/07




Fra Ty

5_
]

APN 02-201-32
SUTRO TUNNEL

ivtReEPo T L &85 ]
A PORION OF THE SE L/% OF SECTON 3t - 1
_ TOHNSHIP 17 NoRTH, MVZI EAST, MOM

B s S,

e "-;"-\,r..'-‘. i

FREFARED BY: D 80X 1, SLUER CITY, NV 89428 S
: ) 847-0841 S

e T S e s &




_E . Bax 1nsz
Virginia City, ¥V 808440

To: Storey County Commission.
Re: Gold Hill Railroad Depot Lease
Gentlemen:

Here are the requested changes to the lease that the Gold Hill Historical Society has on
the Gold Hill Railroad Depot that is being submitted for renewal:

Line 6. Should read WHEREAS, NRS 244.279 to 286 glves the boards of county
commissions”

Line 9. Should read “WHEREAS, the former Virginia and Truckee Railroad Gold Hill
railroad depot, located at Gold Hill, Nevada, is the property of Lessor,” ...

Line-11. Should read “WHEREAS, Lessee’ desues to utilize said property as a museum,
railroad station, and community events venue,” .....

Line 13. Should read “ 1. Lessor hereby leases to Lessee for a-period of fifteen years
‘from the date hereof,” ....

Previous leases were done in 5 year periods. Gold Hill Historical Society and its
-predecessor have leased the venue for 20 years so far, and have invested over

- $400,000.00 in repairs, upgrades, and maintenance in the project through grants,
donations and in-kind contributions. There had been a question of whether the County
could enter longer leases, and NRS 244.320 addresses this, but it is only applicable to
transactions in which the county is obligated to pay money and the funds are not
approprlatcd for the entire term of the lease/agreement. The Fourth Ward School building
is under a very successful 30 year ledase. This allows long term program development and
planning vital to the operation and fund raising abilities ofa non-proﬁt organization.
Many state grants come with covenants that require 10 ycar minimum maintenance
commitments. The Society is already obligated under some of those.

‘Line 18. Should read “3. Lessee agrees to rehabilitate the said depot for the display and
operation of railroad equipment, to maintain the premises as a historical monument
representative of the original owner, the Virginia and Truckee Railroad of 1869- 1950, to
operate a museum, gift shop and ticket office, and to participate in other railroad related
activities, as well as to develop use as a community events venue.”




Line 32. Shouid read “7. In the event that the premises are sold, Lessee shall have first
right of refusal, and consideration shall be made of Lessee’s previous investment in the
premises.”

The line “provided, however, that the Lessor may convey the premises to the owner of
the Virginia & Truckee Railroad.” should be stricken, as that party has done nothing
beneficial to the County or to the Society concerning this venue to warrant any
consideration in this matter, and is not a party of legal standing to this agreement.

Line 36. Should read “9. Lessor reserves the right to make improvements if necessary to
the premises during the lease term, at Lessor’s expense.

The line including the “needs” of the Virginia & Truckee Railroad should be stricken, as
that party is not a party of legal standing in this agreement, and has shown hostility
toward the lessee, fo the detriment of the County’s benefit of the lessee’s positive
contributions to the venue,

Line 39, Should read “10. This lease may be terminated by either party upon 90 days
written notice for just cause, including violation of the terms of this lease.”

Thank you for your consideration of these changes. It is our intention to continue to
develop the Gold Hill railroad depot as a catalyst for further economic development on
the Comstock. Storey County has been a valuable partner in the rehabilitation of this
premises, and we look forward to many more years of mutually beneficial cooperation.

Respectfully,

Kim Fegert, Prdj ect Managef
Gold Hill Historical Society




=) Virginia & Truckee Railroad Company

P.O. Box 467
Virginia City, Nevada 89440
775-847-0380

June 10, 2013

Mr. Pat Whitten
County Manager
Storey County Nevada

RE: Gold Hill Depot Lease Renewal
Dear Mr. Whitten

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on the subject lease. As you know our family
started and financed the reconstruction of the Virginia & Truckee Railroad over forty
years ago. Over the past twenty years we have transported well over a million tourists
and locals to the end of our tracks in Gold Hill allowing patrons to disembark from our
trains and to enjoy the highlights of the area. Regrettably, there has been limited use and
enjoyment of the Gold Hill Depot and grounds except as scenery from our trains.

We also have been the train provider / operator for the NCRVTRy/Carson City Visitors
Bureau for the past four years and our contract has recently been extended for a five-year
period. While our daily short line operation continues to be successful without any
activity at the Depot, I believe it is the interest of Storey County that the Depot’s full
potential be realized.

I believe the best use of the structure is for railroad related special events and perhaps as
an additional meeting venue for Storey County. As an evenis example, we have created
and operate sold out daytime Christmas trains departing Virginia City, and the evening
Polar Express trains out of Carson City. The Gold Hill Depot has potential for such
revenue producing events.

The Gold Hill train station is a marvelous structure from times past. My father reminded
me today that the Gold Hill Historical Society as well as prior groups donated many
volunteer hours contributing to the preservation and restoration of the Depot. The Depot
now appears to be in better shape with the help of significant Storey County funding,
State funding and private donations,

The most serious concern I have to be addressed is the proposed operation by others of a
train to-and from the Depot. We fall under the jurisdiction of NV State PUC and the
FRA. In addition to complying with many extra federal regulations it should be apparent
to all that operation on the Commission’s ten miles of tracks require extraordinary safety
practices given the steep grades and multiple sharp curves.




If the Storey County Commission decides to extend the lease with GHHS, I request there
be some provision for resolving issues of mutual interest. We have had little if any
cooperation with the GHHS: on the most commonplace of matters, simple matters, Our
employees have been hindered from doing track maintenance and repairing disabled
locomotives on their way to and from Carson City, On September 20, 2008 I again
advised GHHS that they had installed a switch on our property for their siding without
our permission.

I am willing to meet with your officials to review short term and long-term possibilities
for this wonderful Nevada treasure.

Thank You,
Thomas Gray

V & T Railroad
Virginia City, Nevada




Pat Whitten

From: Pat Whitten
Sent:  Thursday, July 30, 2009 11:49 AM %Q a
To: tyson.john@sbcglobal.net (% Ee)
Subject: FW: Svetic Parcel Grading TN
Hi John, & 3

It was great to see and talk to you this morning. Here is the entire email exchange between Kim Fegert
and myself. | appreciate your perspective and help. See you tomorrow with Kevin hopefully...

Pat

“Pat Whitten
County Manager
Storey County

(775) 847-0968 (Office)
(775) 721-7001 (Cell)

PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider

powered by: vl

From: kfegert@aies.net [mailto:kfegert@aies.net]
Sent: Wednesday, July 29, 2009 6:00 PM

To: Pat Whitten

Cc: jflanagan@storeycounty.org

Subject: Re: Svetic Parcel Grading

Pat: The idea that | have time for confrontation, let alone desire, is ludicrous. Because of the deadline of
the day the fire sprinkler system is activated, this project is suddenly going to get more expensive soon. |
will have a phone bill, an alarm monitoring bil,, the water bill and additional electrical use to deal with,
We had intended to continue construction through the winter and have the yard and building safe and
open for business by June. We have to, because the building support requires it. We are trying to be
very thrifty with our remaining grant money and resources because we don't expect any more next year
outside donations. We still have plumbing and electrical issues to deal with, and the reconstructed
Southwest corner rooms need interiors,

Why on Eaith anyone would believe | need more problems, | don't know. But, there's no shortage of
donations there. :

It shouid be easy to understand that demands such as your previous letter placed on my time and
resources would naturally back me into a corner. First, | would suggest a different approach to working
with people who are supposed fo be your allies than the "heart attack” confrontation letter method. We
are, and, always have been happy to assist whenever we can with any issues. But, | think we've earned
at least a little respect. We have always been willing to share any credit for success with all who
contribute, inciuding Storey County. But, we don't care for being blamed for striving to meet a goa! and
falling short because no one else helped.

QA NNG




Page 2 of 9

That you are willing to communicate on these matters, however, does make a difference. We are too. But, for this to
maintain a good:standard, there must be understarx_dmg and compromise. You must necessarily understand my

caplbllltles and resources, and if you are willing to do so, 1 am willing to continue (as we have already been doing) to
try to improve the area.

By the way, the oii spill is cleaned up,and, none of it occurred on County property. Look forward to discussing it with
you in-person-on site.

| am flattered that you. consuder my- communlcatlons "well written". But the paint is not an essay in English class. Itis
important that | provide accurate information to the people who need it, and | will contintie to do so whenever
- necessary,

We, once again, are happy to cooperate in any way we logically can fo assist with your concerns. We merely expect
the same. Look forward to the earliest mesting with you on the site.

| -— Original Message -~
& From; Pat Whitten

1 To: kfegert@ales net

1ce: i anagan@storeycounﬂ org ; da@storeycounty.org ; igrant@storeycounty, org ; Gary Hames ; Tracy Curtis
1 Mike Nevin

| Sent: Wednesday, July 29, 2009 7:34 AM
i| Subject: RE: Svetic Parcel Grading

: Kim,

| 1t seems to me you should be spending your valuable time cleaning the area owned by the County, instead of

i} composing well written but lengthy emails. | do not intend to enter into an electronic debate with you. It doesn’t
not matter a single bit what your intent is with the materials laying around in disarray there are. in your eyes, |
nderstand it may-signal progress. However in others, including mine, it signals junk, clutter:and a potential
-fnuisance, at least from a tourism/ecanomic perspective. We can potentially address your side of the story on

| removal of the platform, covering up the fuel spill, intentionally blocking emergency vehicle access and the other
Jissues but | will- do so only in:manner that will foster mitigation on all sides...not just the mterests you represent.

| This will not include inviting the “140 dignitaries” to explain your vision as this event has already been well

| scheduled and planned,

| It would seem you are posturing to make this a fight which certainly is not my desire. Simply clean up the area

i} within the designated time period as | have requested and we can address the remainder of the issues in a calm
|| professional manner. Continuing to make excuses and threats is most unprofessional and a waste of everyone’s

Ttime,

Pat Whitten

, PatWhltten o
COUnty Managef
Storey County

(775) 847-0968 (Office)
{7753 721 1 (Cell)

Pz B by s

il b widicuASP

 Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider

R/412009




Page 3 of 9

1 From: kfegert@aies.net [mailto:kfegert@aies.net]
Sent: Wednesday, July 29, 2009 12:05 AM

To: Pat Whitten

{ Cc: jflanagan@storeycounty.org

] Subject: Re: Svetic Parcel Grading

Pat: It seems that it is a foregone conclusion that after investing 20 odd years of effort and over $350,000.00 in the
preservation and rehabilitation of the Gold Hill train station, with the supoit of hundreds of people from four local
counties including ours, that, now that it's finally comming around to the point that we are expecting to be open for
next summer's tourist season, other people have designs on it. This seems strangely familiar to when we tried to
save V&T Locomotive 27 from rotting‘in the center of town. Just as the effort was begun to restore it, the State stole
it away with an unnecessary compliment of six highway patrolmen (after a well documented meeting with Governor
Bob Miller in which he told us to go ahead and fix it). You have the Dayton on display because we didn't forget what
they did to us (as well as the rest of the citizens of Storey County). Interestingly, by the way, the County
| Commissioner who sided against us is now doing time on another matter, and, none of the State officials involved
work there any longer.

| The idea that we would invest'so much volunteer effort (thousands of hours) and resources (hundreds of thousands
}of dollars) on an agreement to partner with the County to preserve a historic structure that the County was '

| previously happy to let decay since it's-acqusition in 1946, and then be run off like a bunch of squatiers doesn't sit

{ well with any of our members or supporters. Naturally, the rest of the Historic Preservation community will- be very
{interested in exactly how this plays out, as well as the motivation. That there are a few people with other interests in
mind that don't understand the difficulties in using limited funds to complete a complicated project like this-with so

| many interests at odds instead of working together is beyond my paygrade (which, by the way, is zero) to manage.
That so many do and will benefit form our efforts has been my concemn the last 20 years.

We have always had a-well known game plan that has.enjoyed decades of support and we have gone out of our
way to be easy.to work with and up front about our project. And we have always had to trust that the County would,
short of offering no assistance (save the recent work by Public Works on the fire main) at least not hinder us in
trying to complete this project. We have asked no more.

There is nothing on the property that will not be used in completion of the project or in the operation of it. Some of

| the leftovers remain an important source of construction funding. We have been steadily disposing of that material

1 as we need things like diesel fuel for a bulldozer whose time is donated by one of our many supporters as match for
CCA funding. We expect $8,000,00 worth of windows and doors for the West side to be delivered from the

manufacturer (custom for this structure) in the next month. We expect scon to begin construction of roof fire

| serinklers to protect the wooden shingles that the interior system cannot with donated pipe stored outside (to permit

~ | construction inside the building), as well as other needed plumbing repairs. We will be using extra raifroad ties to

-assist in construction of a railroad-themed picnic and event center in the "back yard" area of the station, as well as
in improvements in the parking area taking shape out front.

We are happy to discuss reasonable ideas to bring the project on line as scon as possible (we could use some help
from prisoners if possible, for example.) We also are aware that most of the public is aware that the station is under
construction. We would be happy to have any of the 140 dignataries” expected stop by, and to explain the vision
-and support for the project, as well-as the effort involved and provided by our group (including providing a half
‘million dollars worth of materials to the first phase of construction which they will have just traveled over, and the
year of effort that that took.) : '

That we are aparently expected to liquidate our materials (in spite of a Srorey County Ordinance that specifically
{allows storage of materials- used for construction of railroad facilities) leaving us nothing to complete the project
within the ensuing few weeks is unacceptable, and the tone of the request is_a slap in the face of all involved with
the effort; We are looking forward to working with the County in the future in an amicable relationship, but, if forced
to defend our efforts, which wether or not you find "embarrassing” we, in light of the well-documented sacrifice
we've made to the WHOLE project, are very proud of, make no mistake, we will with our supporters thoroughly
document and make it publicly clear what our efforts are being rewarded with. | wonder what the county's citizen's
‘reactions will be to it suddenly turning on it's own. ' '

/A NNt




Page 4 of 9

We are happy to address in person anyone's legitimate complaints. We will also address anything we consider
| unwarranted harrassment. Personally, consideririg what |'ve given to this project since 1985, I'm tired of that too.

During a recent visit to the depot, Commissioner Millard said that he saw a part in this project for everyone, and, |
believe that it's success depends on everyone of integrity than can possibly be involved.

4 By the way, the grading issue seems to have been substantially solved to the agreement of all concerned, while
1 improving on the original concept.

Please find a way, as-a public servant, to make the most of this effort rather than the least of it. Apparently good
| public relations are becoming critical.

Thank you for your attention to this matter,
This is an open letter. '

Kim Fegert

- Original Message -----

From: Pat Whitten.

iTo; kfegert@aies.net .

Ce: jflanagan@storeycounty.org ; Tracy Curtis ; Mike Nevin ; Gary Hames : Susan Sutton
Sent: Tuesday, July 28, 2009 6:41 AM

:Subject: RE: Svetic Parcel Grading

Kim,

I will work to set up a meeting with you and hopefully John Flanagan, Tracy Cirtis and possibly others with a
vested interest in the Gold Hill area. Please do not make the mistaken assum ption this is a “Tom Gray complaint
list”. Information | have collected both written and verbally comes from no less than at least six individuals that
I can think‘of and often with two or more complaining about the same or similar issues. As you have suggested,
| |1 think the best thing to.da'is:meet on site to discuss mandatory mitigation measures further, item by item. Iin
the meantime, | strongly suggest you start cleaning up the entire depot area. What isn’t taken care of in its

' éentirety by the Sunday preceding Rail Fest on August }.tith_, | will have our Public Works crew remove and
dispose of all remaining material on County property inclusive of street right-of-ways, with GHHS held
responsible for all costs. With over 140 VIP/dignitaries coming to Virginia City to ride the inaugural train and
many others passing both ways during the subsequent weekends, | will not risk further embarrassment to our
Commissioners {who will also be onboard), the County or the Rail Commission. | will contact you when I return
for additional follow-up. '

Paf Whitten
County Manager
Storey County

(775) 847-0968 [Office)
(775) 723- 7001 {Cell)

5 b USSR ASR

;;Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider

a/Annt




Page 5 of 9

From: kfegert@aies.net [mailto:kfegert@aies.net]
Sent: Sunday, July 26, 2009 4:00 AM
1 {To::Pat Whitten
I |Subject: Re: Svetic Parce! Grading

Pat: Since you will be away from your desk, | am assuming that you will still be checking your e-mails, and |
wanted to provide you with some advance information. | will address the bulletted issues in order.

I‘Tﬁe*"passenger loading platform” issue was discussed with Bob Gray more than two years ago, when with his
. |permission, we did the track work that necessatated it's removal. '

The first issue is that it was not constructed on either his property or any that he had permission to use. It was

gonstructed when the track was illegally occupying County property that GHHS now has under lease. Because it

- |eecupied an area right through the switch it was hazzardous anyway, and because it was built from scrap wood, it
was:difficult to maintain. When the switch was realigned, it left a useable area for a new structure that could be

- {constructed to require minimal maintenance and installed in a safer manner, :

We rose an area to the required level with filf dirt and covered it with small "yard ballast” so named because it's
deemed of a size to be easily walked upon by the American Railway Engineering & Maintenance Association. It
will not become muddy, is slip resistant, is made from specification rock, and doesn't break or splinter when
driven upon. We placed it OUT of the switch, making it safer still to walk on, and, where it crosses the house

|| Jtrack; we installed a recycled commercial grade rubber walkway which is bolted to the track with 12" x 3/4" bolts.
] JAid it's entirely on the Gray's property. We paid for everything ourselves, but, we did not want the liability of his
|| |unloading operation on our lease. We don't even know if their insurance covers us or the County for passengers
walking through the property..

We have seen countless times successfull use of the unloading area, but have noticed recently thatithe train'.

stops:much: outh.than the. platfo £ and there'is-hithing down.there for the passengers t get
downronto. T '

We have dilligently to the best of our resources:maintained.a.v y;to the access.area to.Telegraph:Street, and
have witnessed many people using it with no problem. We'Ve never seen anyone traverse it with a wheel chair,
 [but then, Telegraph Street is be dangerously steep in the Southerly direction for them anyway. We do have

.- Jtrouble with tourists in autos and on ATV's and motorcycles ruining the grading, though.

| gl am currently not aware of any difficulty for emergency vehicles moving in or out of the area. | regularly drive a
{ - [five=ton truck full of gravel through there with no concern untill well past our area. We've had 18-wheelers in
I Ithere. Would be happy to address concerns of the Fire Department if they present any,

| [Number four is entirely outside our responsibility. The "gunfighters” are employees of the Grays. The Grays never

‘{approached us for any permission to operate on-any of our lease, and, are not prevented access from from
{anyplace that they have chosen to operate. The Gunfighters are friends of ours, and, have been very respectful of
lour efforts and watchful of safety issues,

We don't know a thing about "barbeque events", nor have ever seen evidence of them. No one talks to us about
anything the Grays plan, so we do not know how to accommodate them. Since they share no revenue with us, we

1 don't expect to be involved. Nor do we complain about anything they do.

‘ Tha_t_‘l'm aware of, allegation 5 is patently false. We know the train crews, and harbor no ill will to them. We would
like to speak in person to any accusors to determine the circumstances. It is pointless for us to offend train
Lp engers, for which we're renovating the facility. We commonly provide ticket location information to passers

Creosote on the ties is not buildup. We don't apply it. They come that way from the factory. We haven't heard of
1 lanyone slipping on it, as it seems to be naturally sticky. Rocks are commonly stuck to them. We did install a

R/4/2000




1 {Since early Spring, we have steadily been Using'up or seliin
} ot more around,

Page 6 of 9

<way for the passengers, however, to avoid that if possible. There is not supposed to be anyone on our track
anyway, (safety/liability issues) and, the ties on the Gray's property are their responsibility.

alism, and, because we are trying to determine the culprit, | would like to discuss

’'materials stored around the area, so, thers is less,

,We have not given up the "fenced storage area". Wll discuss details with you in person. Same with the grading
issues;

{This sounds like a Tom Gray complaint wish list to me. We don't make it a point to harrass their operation and,

| Hfeelithis to be very counter-productive, considering our respective positions and resources. | would wonder what
| irassengers must think of the:j 1eir Ig¢

] t

their:raifroad yard::We are using the. material we have. And, while'he:soley
' :‘,Q:;efits from his efforts, everyone in the county benefits from our efforts. | haven't ever made a dime on this.

qu]g very much forward to hearing from you,.

P.S. Except for a little dirt here and there, the Public Works boys did a fantastic job installing our water service,
and should be commended. Great work, good to work with.

| |- Original Message -
|From: Pat Whitten
To: kfegeit@aies. net
Ce: Tracy Curtis ; [flanagan@storeycounty.org
Sent: Friday, July 24, 2009 3:43 PM
Subject: RE: Svetic Parcel Grading

Kim,

JThis is one of several complaints and/or concems that seem to be arising lately. | am aware you are working
-|with Shannon with our Community Development Department to square away proper permitting, etc. Hopefully
| [this can be easily fixed to the satisfaction of surrounding land owners including the Rail Commission. | am

| {equally concerned with other issues | have been made aware of including:

1. Removal and failure to replace a passenger loading platform, This is inhibiting passengers from getting
off to visit local business in Gold Hill.

2. Destruction or removal of a road or walkway for access down to the Gold Hill Hotel, particularly by
handicapped passengers.

3. Failure to maintain the service road for emergency vehicle access from the southern edge of the
property. :

4. Destruction of and/or failure to provide for a contiguous area to facilitate “gun fighter" shows that occur
on a daily basis and barbeque type special events such as have frequently occurred on the Moonlight
Wine Trains,

5. Depot workers exhibiting openly rude gestures and behavior toward passengers and/or employees when
the train passes by the depot area.

6. Excessive oil or creosote build-up on your track ties. This has reportedly caused at least one passenger
to slip-and fall.

7. Waste oil or diesel spill in and around the engine stored on site which appears to have been covered
over with ballast.

8. Excessive debris and junk cluttering the entire depot grounds.

| Some of this is coming to me directly and some from third party comments. | will be out of state attending at a
National Convention and want to meet with you to discuss furtherwhen I return late next week. In the mean
time, with Rail Fest rapidly approaching, it is imperative you clean the entire grounds prior to this landmark
event. We verbally agreed that any customary equipment would be maintained behind proper fencing and my

/A 0NN




Page 7 of 9

persanal opinion is the grounds look more like a “rail yard” as opposed to the historic passenger depot it is
nded to be. In fact, the current lease specifies that a 6 foot fence shall be constructed in conformance with
ur committing that there will be no maintenance material or artifacts “strewn” about the grounds and the said
closure would contain spare ties, rails, maintenance matetial and equipment. Since this has not yet

1 appehed, it couid be considered a violation of both Section 3 and Section 8 of your current lease.

B ly message here should be very clear...things need to be cleaned up completely well before the kick off of Rail
st on August 14‘_“.- We must provide a favorable image to passengers on all trains passing by the Gold Hill
t.. | hope to meet with you on site when | retum to inspect for compliance and further discuss-items 1 thru 7

Bbove..

~ Pat Whitten

.......... Pat Whitten
County Manager
Storey County

(775) 847-0968 (Office)
(775) 721-7001 (Cell)

PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider

powered by: visichASP

i kfegert@aies.net [mailto:kfegert@aies.net]

Sent: Tuesday, July 21, 2009 4:41 PM

: : Ken Dorr

{ [Cc: dwight, millard; Michael Smiley Rowe; Pat Whitten
[subject:Re: Svetic Parcel Grading

| 'We will grade to match existing road as soon as we can, and, work to remove excess material whenever
| [possible. We were trying to figure out a logical way to use the grading to enhance the value and usefulness of
khe:parcel, but, we.do not have to insist on it.
| F-—— Original Message -——
i JFrom: Ken Dorr
1To: kfegert@aies.net .
1Cc: dwight, millard ; Michael Smiley Rowe ; Whitten, Pat
' [Sent: Tuesday, July 21, 2009 8:27 AM '
[Bubject: Re: Svetic Parcel Grading

- [Kim:

e agreement was that you could place excess material on the'Comn"lission's_ lot as long as it matched the
grade of the existing access road. :

| {It sounds'like you are anticipating additional grading and any retaining wall was not expected and is certainly
not authorized. 1t seems that your refatively simple request to place some excess material adjacent to and at
| Ithe same elevation plane as the current access road crossing the "Svetic" Parcel is now becoming

fcomplicated. -With these complications I'm going to insist that you prepare a detailed Grading Plan designed
by a Professionat Engineer and submit it to Storey County and the Commission for formal approval and

R/A/2009




Page 8 of 9

5 ding takes place on the Svetic parcel, other that leveling the
fotyesterday. Alternatively, please remove all of the fill

°fea’sfeead€‘1ise.

KLD

A 4andapprovAt this point I'm of the opinion that:the best option would be foryou to remov

b>> <kfegert@aies.niet> 7/20/2009 11:04 PM >>>
FSomment noted.

J\hite in the process of trying to determine the best circumstances of the grading result, we came up with the
ollowing::

 fhe original grade level (pre 1978) that we are trying to restore only maintains elevation for about 40 feet from
the building, after which the "road" pitches downgrade to the highway.

..urrent!y, the best uses for the parcel are either parking or a building lot, both of which should optimally be
:evel

}Ve have probably enough more dirt to accomplish a level lot at the end of Telegraph Street, if we strike it off
bnto the parcel. If, however, that is done, the road elevation at the highway would necessarily be depressed.
Another option is to remove all of the excess dirt, eventually requiring some retaining structures to be
,onstructed at the West end of the Commission's lot.

have extensively discussed this situation with Peter Leonard, who controls a small parcel between Telegraph

1 - Btreet and some of the "Svetic" parcel. He sees no problem with leveling the whole area.

'Felegraph Street needs to be brought down to the original grade to work, and { am warking with Public Works
0 accomplish that. There is an issue with the sewer system that needs to be addressed, but, it has to wait for
he road to be leveled first. | don't know what Public Works' schedule is for further dirt work yet.

- Py grading done outside the water main construction area, even though necessary, is NOT covered by our
>CA grant, and, is paid for out of my pocket. That means that while we are sensitive to everyone's opinions, |
ill have to raise the funds to complete the extra grading unless | can work it out with Public Works. We have
Endeavored to see that no legitimately unsafe conditions exist on Commission property, and will immediately

! address any that may arise.

| [hile the Public Works people did a commendable job installing the water main, 1 was not there to control
1 Bome of the grading they did for convenience, sothe end result was hot "engineered”.

f it is desired to strike off the "berm"” right away, we will try to do so. 1 would, however recommend reviewing
he best direction for the grading to take under the circumstances first.

From: Ken Dorr
- Jfo: Kim Fegeit
‘Cc: millard dwight
ent: Monday, July 20, 2009 7:29 AM
‘Bubject: Svetic Parcel Grading

<ini:

Took quick | look at the grading operations at Gold Hill Depot yesterday, and while I realize you are not yet
romplete, would make the following comment:

N’Iease complete the grading on the fill you placed adjacent to the access road across the "Svetic” Parcel -

R/4/2009




Page 9 of 9

such that the fill placed downhill from the road is on a continuous plane with the level of the road. In other
words, the "bermed material" on the downhill side of the road needs to be leveled to match the grade of the
road. Looks like you will have to export some of the material placed to accomplish this objective,

Please call if any questions.

KLD

Manhard

CONSHLTIN

Caisony City, MV B9706 .
p: T78.882.5630 1/ 775.885/7282

This electronic message and any files or attacshments ara confidential and may be privileged information. The information is solely for the use of
the individual{s) or entity to which it was addressed, If you are not the Intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified that distributing, copying; or
in any way disclosing any of the information in this e-mail is strictly prohibited. Receipt by anyone other than the named recipient(s) is not a
waiver of any work product, or other applicable privilege: If you have réceived this e-mail in error, please nolify sender immediately, and desiroy
the material in its entirety, whether in electronic or hard copy format. Since data stered on electronic media can deteriorate, be translated or -
modified, Manhard Consulting Ltd. will not be liable for the completeness, correctness or readability of the electronic data. The elactronic data

should be verified against the hard copy;i

Q/fArnnn




Gold Hill Historical Soclety

To: Robert C. Gray : May 16, 2010
President, Virginia & Truckee Railroad

9 Ramona Drive _

Orinda, Catifornia 94563

From: Kim Fegert

Dear Sir:

OnMay 12, 2010, Imet with Mr. Pat Whitten; County Manager, Storey County, and
"o Gray of yourorgs zation, concerning access issues at the Gold

on to’t}}e track of the

your

Railroad Commission’s.
Historically; since the construction of yourrallroad toour venue in ,1'.991, we have had-
an amicable relationship including the construction of the access turnout at that time with

material and labor we provided. Any maintenance to the turnout, including upgrading it

with newer and heavier materials in 2005, has been done at our expense. It should be

noted that that turnout (for clarification, the tumout in the Gold Hill-siding) is located on

County property, NOT railroad property. We have to pass over a small lot before the
 turnout and another lot afier the turnout to access the Railroad Commission’s track.

At the time the original installation was constructed, there was a mutus! recognition

_ that rail access in the form of the restored house track to the station would benefit the
railroad project as a whole, and no access problems were anticipated. We agreed fo the
mutual use of the access on an as needed basis. To that effect, several hundred thousand
doflars of improvements io ntake Gold Hill station a useful and viable venue have since
been poured into the building and: grounds by dur 0xg2 ization, The State:of Nevada,
Storey County, and the Feather River Short d; a3 'well as many private donors
throughout Western Nevada. i

However; a change in management -your company has discouraged any further
ron the - up'to.anidincluding;threats to remove our access track. At the risk

project; énd thus, its viability, I asked for the fore mentioned

Whitten graciously arranged and attended to see if he could be of any




Address to the NCRVTR
October 5, 2009
By Kim Fegert

The Gold Hill Historical Society wishes to make it known to the Commission that it
supports the efforts of the Carson City Convention and Visitor’s Bureau in their work to
make the Commission’s pmJect a success. It is responsible for resolving what seemed to
be a serious problem by recognizing that only through moving passengers right away
could the pro_]oct begin to realize its intended potential. We wholeheartedly agree with
that premise, and, the appatent result.

We also understand that the CCCVB intends to consider awarding a long term contract to
the Gray family to operate trains over the Commission’s project. We, as participants in
the overall project, have no problem with the choice of operator, as it seems prudent to
take advantage of the small amount of equipment currently available in the area to do
whatever is necessary to get some passengers over the rails. We do however, have
concerns about the terms of the confract, as it can seriously affect our, and, Storey
County’s investment in our project. I will briefly explain our case shortly. First, though,
you may be concerned that this is not the venue for comments on a contract between the
CCCVB and the Grays.

Under most circumstances that would probably be an accurate assumption. But here, the
actions of the CCCVB will reach far outside their political boundaries, and therefore,
those affected people that are outside those boundaries have to take whatever necessary
stand at the governing body with the superior authority in the issue.

~.Our concerns le with the possibility of the contract being cxcluswe ‘and, with scheduled
stopping. [ will at this time outline our concerns point by point.

We intend to operate with our own crews and equipment fundraising excursions to
support the planned development around our venue and to give other non-profit
organizations a chance to take advantage of the umg;ue opportunity we will provide with
that service. To that end, we have formed an excursion operating entity, we have
substantially constructed a railroad yard to support the operation of both our and the
Commission’s projects, we have secured use of our sister ‘organization’s operable
locomotive, which has just passed an annual F.R.A. inspection, and ‘we have met the
Federal Railroad Administration’s standards for training and licensing our personnel,
Most of those personnel are experienced veterans of the industry and many have worked
long term on the Gray’s own operation.

We also intend to provide access for the Commission’s patrons to the amenities planned
at our venue, and the businesses at Gold Hill, present and future. To support that goal, we
have invested over a quarter million dollars in rehabilitation of the only actual original
railroad station currently on the line. We are continuing to complete further renovations
as time and funding allow, such as the new $38,000.00 fire sprinkler system. We are
currently accepting bids for 4 contract for more preservation work in the structure, as well




as purchasing new materials to assist us in working toward having the building open for
business next summer, which will include construction of a gift shop within the building
necessary to support the maintenance of the venue. We are working with the
Commission’s engineering team, Storey County, and, local property owners to improve
access and parking at the station. We are developing plans for an interactive interpretive
building to house the locomotive and allow the public to learn about steam railroad
techniology on a one to one basis. We are including much needed public restrooms in the
project. And, we are developing an outdoor event area that will include facilities for
barbeque service, Further, we have contracted with a professional fundraising firm to
begin a capital program aimed at raising more than $400,000.00 to finance venue
improvements and needed equipment.

Our concern about exclusmty has been voiced before. Simply put, we do not believe
there is any logical reason, operationally or otherwise, that an organization such as ours
cannot provide the service opportunities we propose. Similar business operations have
been tested with good resulis on a larger scale at Ely, Nevada, where the non-profit
operation periodically co-existed with common cartier operations. It’s important at this
time to point out that we do not intend to compete with any other operator. Nor, do we
intend to operate on the private track north of the Gold Hill highway crossing. We believe
that since we are looking at a different customer base, and, intend to develop it on our
own, that there are enough riders for everyone to participate. And, every person that rides
for any reason benefits the justification of the project.

Exclusivity would eliminate any opportunities for us to implement the service we
‘propose and severely disable our ability to support the development and maintenance of
the operation. Further, it-would prevent our assisting the Commission and its operator
should the need arise. And, we believe that there is ‘clearly not a public relations
advantage in such restrictions.

Our concern about scheduled stopping is simple. The train currently goes directly to
Virginia City from Eastgate. While we are not ready for passengers to visit our venue yet,
we would eventually request either a reasonable scheduled stop in Gold Hill or a ticketing
‘mechanism that allows riders to take the Gold Hill —Virginia City local back to visit the
venue and Gold Hill businesses at will, Our investment in our venue development as well
‘as that of other businesses is at serious risk if that is not appropriately addressed. Storey
‘County residents look at their investment of tax money in the project, as well as their
generous donations to the Gold Hill Historical Society, as an investment in the county’s
economy as a whole, not just a few blocks of Virginia City, and, would like it spread to
benefit as many people as possible. We intend to be worthy of that generosity, but will
find it difficutt at best without cooperation of the operator.

You have been provided with evidence of Gold Hill Historical Society’s dedication to
this venture, as well as our ability to manage projects such as the Reno ReTRAC Salvage
Project, which brought to the Commission half of 2 million dollars worth of construction
materials, and, provided the Commission with its first mile of track We'd j just like to
share a little in the use of it now and then to benefit all.




I was recently told by one of you commissioners that he believed that there was a place
for everyone in the project, and, in agreement with him, I believe that this project
deserves all the dedicated supporters it can get. And, since we began work on our venue,
years before there was any railroad in Gold Hill at all, we have demonstrated the
dedication and vision to be allowed to continue to contribute any way we can, and, for the
mutual benefit of all supporters, are happy to do so.

Questions?




C’Oﬂ" s fuory

Avgust 3, 2009 VISITVIRGINIACITYNV.CoM

Pat Whitten

Storey County

P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Reference: Svetic Parcel Grading
Dear Pat:

As we near the completion of the V & T restoration project and the begmmng of the
trains running from Carson City to Virginia City I feel we should make every effort to
showcase our glorious destination.

First impressions by our guests set the tone of their visitor experience. Ihave spoken to
-you in the past about ‘destinatio promlse This is the promisg; ake to our visitors
;_about thelr Gold H111/V irgini : expenence We prormse safe authentic late

' Virginia City .
ourism spend thousands of

dollars each year advertising that promise.
I have a concern about the south portal into our town in Gold Hill. We want to make sure
that entry is clean and safe for visitors,

We are currently involved in a marketing partnership with the Ca:rson City Convention

~ and Visitors Bureau to promote train ridership, We anticipate thousands of national and

international visitors will be riding those rails in 2009/2010. In this economy this project
can act as'a major economic driver for the region.

As always, thank you for your time and I appreciate any effort you may make to facilitate
a true “Step Back in Time” visitor experience.

Executlve Dlrector

CC: VCCTA Board
-V & T Restoration

86 Soutt “C" STREET ~ PO Box 920, ViRaivia CITY, NevaDa 89440 ~ (775) 847-7500 ~ rax (175) 8477507
EMAIL !HFO@VISITViRGINIACITYNV con




Awgust 3, 2009

Tom Gray

V&T Railroad

PO Box 467

- Virginia City, NV 89440

Dear Mr, Gray,

I wanted to make certain that you were awazg of an incident that occurred last Friday
afternoon. Since I am not certain of whotwgs involved, or even if it was one of your
cmployees, I am also confacting the Nevada Commmission for the Reconstruction of the

V&T Railway.,

My son, who does not live in the area,‘_y&‘a's visiting us. He is & rail fan, and has, up until -
now been an enthusiastioc supporter of both of your railroad and the reconstruction
project. That changed on Priday. ) f

He saw the number 18 Tocon the Gold Hill Depat, and stopped there. He got out

of his car, and asked three yen standing fhepe if he could take some pictures. One of
them, who was apparently fhg engincer} . sarcastically asked him if he could read the
“no trespassing” signs, #nd 'y litake pictures from the “county road” over there.

For a town that depends on tounsm,rude treatment of visitors should not be tolerated, All
- he did was ask permission to be on the depot grounds to take:a picture. '

I am writing as someone who is concerned not s¢ much about the rude treatment of a
relative, but as sorneone who realizes that importance of treating towrists—especiaily
when they are making polite inquiries—like guests thatwewant to remrm to Virginia
City. Our economy depends on tourists, and offending them unnecessarily is detrimental
to everyone who lives here.

Everett Shropshire
PO Box 489
Virginia City, NV 80440







STOREY COUNTY
EMERGENCY MAN'A_GEMENT
INVESTIGATION REPORT

CIRCUMSTANCES AND NARRATIVE

Date of Incident: June 23, 2009

Time of Incident: . 0845 hrs (approx)

Location of Incident: Old V&T Depot, Gold Hill, NY 89440
Along the track under Locomotive #8

Nature of Incident: Oil Spill from Locomotive — Reclaimed oil

Occupant: Gold Hill Depot Historical Society

Owner of Property: Pete Leonard, Sutro Tunnel Corp

.Reporting Party: Tom Gray, V&T Railroad Co,

Apparatus responding: 301 {Curtis)

CIRCUMSTANCES:

On 6-22-09 | was contacted by County Manager Pat Whitten concerning a possible
hazardous material (Reclaimed oil) spill near the Virginia & Truckee old train Depot
along the tracks, Gold Hill, NV.

On 6-23-09 I met with County Manager Whitten and he showed me the location of the
possible reportable oil spill under and the side of the Feather River Locomotive #8
located just to the South of the Depot in Gold Hill on Sutro Tunnel Co. propetty.

The locomotive is situated on a small spur of rail from the main rail line.




I was shown several spots between tie that support the rail (and the locomotive) on the
west side of the locomotive that had very obvious and significant amounts of black oil on
the ground. The oil had been covered over with gravel (ballast) between the tie. At this
time I took some photos of the area around the locomotive. It was apparent that it would
require further examination of a more detailed nature to determine the extent of the oil
spill.

Upon returning to Virginia City I made phone contact with the Nevada Department of
Environmental Protection (DEP), Rob-Palmer, and explained the matter to him. It was
decided that T would return to the location with tools to try and determine if there was a
potential for more than 25 gallons of material that may have been spilled or 3 cubic yards
of dirt that had been contaminated. This would determine if a formal sp111 report would
be required by Nevada DEP.

On Thursday, June 25, at approximately 0730 hours, I returned to the site in Gold Hill
with appropriate tools to dig through the-gravel (ballast) and determine the nature of the
spill. Using a shovel I uncovered several areas between approximately four sets of tie
where there was obvious oil residue.

I determined that there was, between one particular set of tie, a significant amount of
black oil that had been spilled or intentionally placed there that ran from the west side of
the rail, between the tie, and on for a distance of about 8 to 10 feet (about 18 inches
beyond the end of the tie) and had pooled out beyond the tie. It was readily apparent that
at some point a person(s) had covered over the spill areas with fresh gravel ballast. It is
unknown if this gravel was placed over it to intentionally cover the spill o hide 1t orifit
was just part of the normal placement of the ballast between the tie.

After removing approximately 4 to 5 inches of ballast to get down to the oil covered
lower level ballast and to the dirt I determined that the oil, while somewhat pooled and
standing on the ground had not soaked into or penetrated the ground surface by any more
than about one inch. It should be noted that the ground at this location is typical “tailing”
material which has high ¢lay content and thusly packs down significantly to an almost
concrete like surface with low penetration ability by even water. This material is very
rocky and is commonly referred to as “Comstock concrete

In examining the undercarriage of Locomotive #8, I could not discern any particular
location of a possible leak. There are, however, several valves under the oil tender.

In terms of the amount of spill it is difficult to determine however it is my opinion that, in
total, around the tie and under the locomotive there is probably no more than a maximum
of ten to fifteen gallons of oil residue. In speaking with DEP in Carson City regarding
typical railroad yard oil accumulations in shop or repair yards this would not be an
unusual amount of oil nor would it'be of major concern as long as there were no




ground penetration into a potential water bearing soil subsurface. DEP used the example
of the Nevada Northern Railroad in Ely, Nevada which is also an oil fired steam
locomotive operation. DEP did indicate that this would be important to document as a

~ baseline and to follow the area in the future for further accumulations of liquid standing

~ or penetrating oil into the ground in the area. '

Itook photos of the area for documentation of the status of the-oil spills.

OBSERVATION: There appears to be a lack of personal or company responsibility and
duty on someone’s part to protect the local environment from excessive release of such
product. This product release could have easily been prevented by placing appropriate
buckets or containers in place to catch any oil releases, leaks or drips. There would seem
to be no excuse for allowing this accumulation of oil to occur. It appears that there was
an intentional opening of a valve or the pouring out of a bucket of oil into this area then it
was intentionally covered up with ballast (gravel).

- It is fortunate for the locomotive responsible party that the ground is so hard and that it
has not soaked into the soil to any degree. .

This oil release far exceeds that which might be considered routine drippings from the
locomotive or tender on a daily basis for the period that it has been stored there.

The locomotive has been at this location for approximately eight to ten months. This
release would seem to be more typical of releases that may have been occurrmg for
maybe five or more years.

Should ‘this area of contamination continue to be used or allowed to accumulate oil
in the future to a point that it exceeds the 25 gallon threshold it would qualify as an
illegal release and thereby become reportable to DEM as a hazardous materials
spill.’ As such it would then be an area and event that would possibly be subject to
fines by both the county and the state. '




CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION: There is an insufficient amount of oil
(minimum of 25 gallons or 3 cubic feet of contaminated soil) to be reportable as a spill to
DEP, The area will be monitored in the future for any further accumulations.

Tt is recommended that the owner/operator of the locomotive be required to go in and
remove the ballast, scoop up the pooled oil and oil contaminated soil on the ground
surface, appropriately dispose of the contaminated soil, then replace the ballast gravel in
between the various tie, of which there are about four locations on the west side. This
recommendation would include the areas underneath the locomotive, of which there are
several, as well as the areas along the outside of the track on the west side of the track,

The fact that some of the gravel has oil on it is not of concern, That ballast could be re-
used. Itis the oil that has seeped to the ground surface, pooled and begun to penetrate
the soil that is the concern.

END OF REPORT
Photos attac_‘!led

Joe Curtis June 25, 2009
Director

Storey County Emergency Management

District Chief, Virginia City District

Storey County Vol. Fire Dept.

Virginia City '




Page 1 of 1

Pat Whitten

From: wfainvenv@aol.com

Sent:  Friday, March 06, 2009 9:56 AM
To: commissioners@storeycounty.org
Subject: Gold Hill Depot

Dear Commissioners:

It has come fo our attention that the Gold Hill Depot is not effectively fulfilling its role as the
train depot for Gold Hill is its current configuration. The passengers from the train cannot easily
debark from the train since there is no platform for them to exit onto. We understand that there
was previously a platform but it has been removed and not replaced. This keeps passengers from
easily being able to get off the train at the station to visit local businesses in Gold Hill which is
an economic hardship for the businesses which depend on tourist traffic. The privilege of
operating the depot should include the requirement of giving proper facilities for train passengers
as would be normal in a functioning depot. We would appreciate it if the Commissioners would
explore this problem and consider it in deciding whether to continue with the current operator.

This is important to the businesses of Gold Hill,

Sincerely,
William W. Fain
Proprietor, Gold Hill Hotel

Check all of your email inboxes from anywhere on the web. Try the new Email Toolbar now!

THSI0NG




Virginia & Truckee Railroad
P.O. Box 467
Virginia City, NV 89440

September 20, 2008

Gold Hill Historical Society
Gold Hill Nevada,

C.C. Mr. Pat Whitten
Storey County Administrator

Dear Mr. Fegert:

While we commend your rehabilitation efforts of the Gold Hill Train station we also have some
concerns as it relates to the Virginia & Truckee Railroad. For the past decade the railroad has
brought nearly a million visitors to Gold Hill on its excursion trains and during this period few
passengers have had the opportunity to use the Gold Hill depot in-any meaningful manner.

The railroad has specific concerns such as unauthorized movemgnt of trains to and from Virginia
-City and Gold Hill, unauthorized construction activities, and tampering with V&T’s switch.

As you are aware the V&T Railroad does not allow any unauthorized construction activities on
its property or right of way. Last year it was indicated to you that a track use agreement must be
in place before you will be allowed to connect tracks to the V&T Railroad, and to this date, that
has not been done. At your earliest convenience you or a meémber of your society needs to meet
with a representative of the V&T to finalize a switch / track use agreement,

Additionally, on Wednesday evening of last week between 5 p.m. and 5:30 a.m. you started
earthmoving operations resulting in an unmarked, torn up road with a oneto two foot drop off
from the existing county road; you did this without setting up any markers, berms or barricades
indicating road construction. Just as importantly, our passengers were unable to unload and
safely visit the Gold Hill businesses for five days. Needless to say the lunch traffic from the
train to the Gold Hill Hotel was obliterated for five days solely because of your lack of a-
coordinated construction act1v1ty Even this past Monday a bus from Beyond Travel could not
discharge their passengers in Gold Hill because of your construction activities.

Furthermore, last year you removed a 50 foot long timber loading platform which has yet to be
replaced for the safe boarding and discharge of passengers. Currently there is a very limited and
temporaty rock. fill to assist passengers over the rail and ties. This arrangement is unacceptable
for various reasons, the biggest of which is safety. The t:mber-boardmg platform must be
reinstalled and replaced by the beginning of next season.




Finally, two weeks ago we had to remove another padlock on the switch off to the depot site.
This is the second time this has occurred. During our federal and state track inspections the

switch must be thrown to ascertain or to repair any defects. If you or anyone else places any
more unauthorized padlocks on any V&T property or right of way they will be removed and
disposed of, and the particular switch assembly will be removed.

Once again, a switch / track use agreement must be in place before any construction activities
occur on V&T Railroad property or right of way.

Thank-you in advance for your attention to this matter.
Thomas Gray
V&TRR

PO Box 467
Virginia City NV 89440




Grold Hill Historical Society

Virginia City, NV 808440

To: Storey County Commission February 24, 2008

‘Storey County Courthouse

P.O. Drawer D
Vitginia City, Nevada, 89440

Re: Gold Hill Station
Honorable Commissioners:

¥ has come to the attention of our organization that the County is concerned with the

finished appearante-of the restored Gold Hill train station. Specifically, that there not be

maintenance materials and artifacts “strewn” about the grounds. Since the recognized -
goal of the restoration is to create a “people friendly” public faclhty, we have developed a

“plan to, upon completion of construction activities, construct a fenced enclosure to
' mnmmmchnw&asmyltemsasspmeu&gmls,mmntenamemmﬂsandeqmpmcntm

anappropnateplacconﬂ:epropeﬂytobedetemmedatthattlme

We propose 3 six foot board fence enclosure appropriate for the area and conforming to
CHD.C. rules,

' We appreciate the County’s concerns and consideration of ﬂxis“inat_tet.

Sincerely,

Kim Fegert, Project Manager

Exhibit B




Ordinance 13-248




Ordinance No. 13-248

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.20 Flood Damage Protection
to update provisions, to provide for new definitions,
require maintenance in watercourses, and to specify the board of appeals.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.20 Flood Damage Protection
updating provisions, providing for new definitions, requiring maintenance in watercourses,
and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Chapter 15.20 is amended as follows:
(Sections that have not been amended are not included.)

Chapter 15.20
Flood Damage Prevention

15.20.040 Definitions.

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this chapter shall must be
interpreted se-as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this chapter
its most reasonable application.

“Accessory use” means a use, which is incidental and subordinate to the principal use of the
parcel of land on which it is located.

“Act” means the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 and Flood Disaster Protection Act of
1973, both as amended.

“Actual cash value (ACV)” means the replacement cost of an insured item of property at
the time of loss, less the value of physical depreciation as to the item damaged.

“Adversely affects” means the cumulative effect of the proposed development when
combined with all other existing and anticipated development will increase the water surface
elevation of the base flood more than one-half foot at any point.

“Alluvial fan” means a geomorphologic feature characterized by a cone or fan-shaped
deposit of clay, silt, sand, gravel, and boulders that have been eroded from mountain slopes,
transported by flood flows, and deposited on the valley floor.

Draft 6/6/13




“Alluvial fan flooding” means flooding occurring on the surface of an alluvial fan or
similar land form which originates at the apex and is characterized by high velocity flows: active
processes of erosion, sediment transport, deposition, and unpredictable flow paths.

“Anchor” means a series of methods used to secure a structure to its footings or foundation
wall so that it will not be displaced by flood or wind forces.

“Apex” means the highest point on an alluvial fan or similar landform below which the flow
path of the major stream that formed the fan becomes unpredictable and alluvial fan flooding can
occur.

“Appeal” means a request for a review of the local floodplain administrator’s interpretation
of any provisions of this chapter or a request for a variance.

“Appurtenant structure” means a detached garage or carport servicing a one to four family
dwelling.

“Area of shallow flooding” means designed AO and AH zones on the flood insurance rate
map (FIRM) with a one-percent or greater annual chance of flooding to an average depth of one
to three feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist; where the path of flooding is
unpredictable; and where velocity flow may be evident, AO is characterized as sheet flow and
AH indicates ponding.

Area of special flood hazard. See “special flood hazard area.”

“Area of special flood-related erosion hazard” means the land within a community that is
most likely to be subject to severe flood-related erosion losses. This area may be designated as
zone E on the flood insurance rate map (FIRM).

“Area of special mudslide (i.e., mudflow) hazard” means the area subject to severe
mudslides (i.e., mudflows). This area is designated as zone M on the flood insurance rate map
(FIRM).

“Assignment” means the transfer by a policyholder of his/her legal right or interest in a
policy contract to a third party. In the NFIP, wriiten assignment of a local policy is permissible
upon transfer of title without the consent of the administrator except in the case where a
residential (household) contents - only policy is involved or a policy was issued to cover a one to
four family residential building in the course of construction,

“Association” means a group of unit owners that manages a described condominium
building.

“Backwater effect” means the rise in water surface elevation caused by some obstruction
such as a narrow bridge opening, buildings or fill material that limits the area through which
water must flow,

“Backfill” means the placement of fill material within a specified depression, hole or
excavation pit below the surrounding adjacent ground level as a means of improving flood water
conveyance or 1o restore the land to the nature contours existing prior to excavation.

“Base flood” means a flood, which has a one percent change of being equaled or exceeded
in any given year. Also referred to as the “one hundred year flood.”

“Base flood depth (BFD)” means the depth shown on the flood insurance rate map (FIRM)
for zone AO that indicates the depth of water above highest adjacent grade resulting from a flood
that has a one percent chance of equaling or exceeding that level in any given year.

“Base flood elevation” means the height in relation to mean sea level expected to be
reached by the waters of the base flood at pertinent points in the floodplain of the riverine areas.

Draft 6/6/13




“Base floodplain” means the floodplain that would be inundated by a one-percent chance
flood.

“Basement” means any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level)
on all sides.

“Binder” means a temporary agreement between company, producer, and insured that the
policy is in effect. Binders are not permitted under the NFIP.

“Blanket insurance” means a single amount of insurance applying to more than one
building and/or contents. Blanket insurance is not permitted under NFIP.

“Breakaway walls” means a wall that is not part of the structural support of the building
and is intended throughout its design and construction to collapse under specific lateral loading
forces, without causing damage to the elevated portion of the building or supporting foundation
system or any buildings to which they might be carried by flood waters. A breakaway wall shall
have a sage design loading resistance of not less than ten and no more than twenty pounds per
square foot. Use of breakaway wall must be certified by a registered engineer or architect and
shall meet the following conditions:

1. Breakaway wall collapse shall result from a water load less than that which would
occur during the base flood, and

2. The elevated portion of the building shall not incur any structural damage due to the
effects of wind and water loads acting simultaneously in the event of the base flood.

Building. See “structure.”

“Channel” means a natural or artificial water course with the definite bed and banks to
confine and conduct flowing water.

“Claims coordinating office (CCO)” means a clearinghouse for the various insurers who
are responding to a multi-peril catastrophe. Through voluntary participation, all losses are
reported to the coordinating office and are processed to locate address matches among the
reported claims. The interest of each carrier is protected as the Claims Coordinator maintains
sole control over the policy and loss information. If a match is found, special care is taken to
direct the assigned adjuster(s) to a mutually agreeable adjustment or to have one adjuster
surrender his/her loss with the assurance that every effort will be made to replace it.

“Code of Federal Regulations” means codification of the general and permanent rules
published in the Federal Regulations Register (CFR) by the executive departments and agencies
of the federal government.

“Coinsurance” means this provision reduces the loss payment if the insured does not carry
coverage equal to at least eighty percent of the replacement cost of the damaged building.

“Community” means any state or area or political subdivision thereof, or any Indian tribe or
authorized tribal organization, or authorized native organization, which has authority to adopt
and enforce flood plain management regulations for the areas within its jurisdiction.

“Community number” means a six-digit designation identifying each NFID community.
The first two numbers are the state code. The next four are the Federal Insurance Administration
(FIA) assigned community number. An alphabetical suffix is added to a community number to
identify revisions in the flood insurance rate map (FIRM) for that community.

“Community rating system (CRS)” means a program developed by the FIA to provide
incentives for those communities in the regular program that have gone beyond the minimum
floodplain management requirements to develop extra measures to provide protection from
flooding. '

Draft 6/6/13




“Conditional letter of map amendment (CLOMA)” means a letter from FEMA stating
that a proposed structure that is not to be elevated by fill would not be inundated by the base
flood if built as proposed.

“Conditional letter of map revision (CLOMR)” means procedures by which contractors,
developers and communities can request review and determination by the Federal Insurance
Administrator of scientific and technical data for a proposed project, when complete and
functioning effectively would modify the elevation of individual structures and parcels of land,
stream channels, and floodplains on the FIRM.

“Conditional letter of map revision (based on fill) (CLOMIR-F)” means a letter from
FFEMA stating that a parcel of land or proposed structure that is to be elevated by fill would not
be inundated by the base flood if fill is placed on the parcel as proposed or the structure is built
as proposed.

“Condominium” means a system of individual ownership of units in a multi-unit building
or buildings or in single-unit buildings in which each unit owner has an undivided interest in the
common areas of the building(s) and facilities that serve the building(s).

“Condominium asseciation” means a corporation made up of owners of the condominium
buildings. The condominium association is responsible for (1) the operation and (2) the adoption
and enforcement of rules or bylaws that govern the owners of the condominium buildings.

“Control office” means an NFIP claims office similar to a Flood Insurance Claims Office
(FICO) with the exception that the control office does not (1) maintain insured files, (2) maintain
a claims examiner staff at the site, and (3) issue claims payments.

“Countywide map” means a flood insurance rate map (FIRM) that shows flooding
information for the entire geographic area of a county, including the incorporated communities
within the county.

“Critical features” means an integral and readily identifiable part of a flood protection
system, (e.g., dams, flood walls, channel improvements), without which the flood protection
provided by the entire system would be compromised.

“Critical structures” means a structure for which even a slight chance of flooding would
reduce or eliminate its designed function of supporting a community in an emergency. Fire
stations, hospitals, municipal airports, police stations, communication antennas or towers, elder
care facilities (retirement homes) fuel storage facilities, schools designated as emergency
shelters, fresh water and sewage treatment facilities are some examples of critical structures.

“Curvilinear line” means the border on either a flood hazard boundary map (FHBM) or
flood insurance rate map (FIRM) that delineates the special flood, mudslide (i.e., mudflow)
and/or flood related erosion hazard areas and consists of a curved or contour line that follows the
topography.

“Date of construction” means the date that the building permit was issued provided the
actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within one hundred
eighty days of the permit date.

“Deductible buyback” means for an additional premium, policyholders who wish to reduce
their deductibles from the standard deductibles of one thousand dollars for pre-FIRM risks may
opt to purchase separate five hundred dollar deductibles for building and content coverage.

“Designated floodway” means the channel of a stream and the portion of the adjoining
floodplain designated by a regulatory agency to be kept free of further development to provide
for unobstructed passage of flood flows.

Draft 6/6/13




“Development” means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate,
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading,
paving, excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials located within the
area of special flood hazard.

“Diagram number” means the diagram numbers on the FEMA elevation certificate identify
the various types of buildings.

“Direct physical less by or from flood” means any loss in the nature of actual loss of or
physical damage, evidenced by physical changes, to the insured property (building or personal
property) which is directly and proximately caused by a “flood” (as defined in the policy forms).

“Doublewide manufactured (mobile) home” means a manufactured (mobile) home that,
when assembled as a non-movable, permanent building, is at least sixteen feet wide with an area
within its perimeter walls of a least six hundred square feet. A doublewide is not classified as a
manufactured (mobile) home for insurance rating purposes under the NFIP, but is classified
under one of the other building types.

“Dry proofing” means a flood proofing method used to design and construct buildings so as
to prevent the entrance of flood waters.

“Elevated building” means a non-basement building that has its lowest elevated floor raised
above the ground level by foundation walls, shear walls, posts, piers, pilings, or columns.

“Elevation certificate” means the elevation certificate is required in order to properly rate
post-FIRM buildings, which are buildings constructed after publication of the flood insurance
rate map (FIRM), for flood insurance zones Al-A30, AE, AH, A (with BFE), VE, V1-V30, V
(with BFE), AR, AR/A, AR/AE, AR/Al-A30, AR/AH, and AR/AQ. The elevation certificate is
not required for pre-FIRM buildings unless the building is being rated under the optional post-
FIRM flood insurance rules.

“Emergency program” typically means, the first phase under which a community
participates in the NFIP. It is intended to provide a first layer amount of insurance at subsidized
rates to all insurable structures in that community before the effective date of the initial flood
insurance rate map (FIRM).

“Enclosure” means that portion of an elevated building below the lowest elevated floor that
is either partially or fully shut in by rigid walls.

“Encroachment” means the advance of infringement onuses, plant growth, excavation, fill,
buildings, permanent structures or development, storage of equipment and materials, or any other
physical object placed in the floodplain that hinders the passage of water or otherwise affects
flood flows.

“Erosion” means the process of the gradual wearing away of any landmass. This peril is not
per se covered under the program. (See flood-related erosion.)

“Existing manufactured homes (mobile home) park or subdivision” means a
manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the
lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, the
installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of
concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the floodplain management regulations
adopted by a community,

“Expansion to 2 manufactured home (mobile home) park’ means the preparation of
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured

Draft 6/6/13




homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, construction of streets, and either
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads).

“Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)” means the federal agency under
which the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) is administered.

“Federal Insurance Administration” means the government unit, a part of the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), that administers the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP).

“Federal Register” means a document published daily by the federal government that
provides a uniform system for making available to the public, regulations and legal notices
issued by federal agencies.

-“Flash flood”” means a flood that crests in a short period of time and is often charactered by
high velocity flows. It is often the result of heavy rainfall in a localized area.

“Flood, flooding, or floed waters” means a general and temporary condition of partial or
compleie inundation of normally dry land areas from the overflow of flood waters; the unusual
and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface water from any source; mudslides; and the condition
resulting from flood-related erosion.

“Flood control” means keeping flood waters away from specific developments or populated
areas by the construction of flood storage reservoirs, channel alterations, dikes and levees,
bypass channels, or other engineering works,

“Flood frequency” means a statistical expression of the average time period between floods
equaling or exceeding a given magnitude.

“Flood hazard boundary map (FHBM)” means an official map of a community, issued by
the administrator, where the boundaries of the flood, mudslide (mudflow) and related erosion
areas having special hazards have been designated as zones A, M, and/or E.

“Flood insurance rate map (FIRM)” means the official map on which the Federal
Emergency Management Agency or Federal Insurance Administration has delineated both the
areas of special flood hazards and the risk premium zones applicable to the community.

“Flood Insurance Study (FIS)” means the official report provided by the Federal Insurance
Administration that includes flood profiles, the flood insurance rate map, and the water surface
elevation of the base flood.

“Floodplain and flood-prone area” means any land area susceptible to being inundated by
waters from any source. (See flooding.)

“Floodplain administrator” means the mdiﬁéﬂﬁl—ésueh—as—ﬂae—e@eﬁgmeer— buildmg
official or his designee-planning-direstor) who is given specific authority and responsibilities to
enforce the local floodplain management regulations. The person named as floodplain
administrator must be capable of interpreting the ordinance codified in this chapter and have
access to necessary technical competence,

“Floodplain management” means the operation of an overall program of corrective and
preventive measures for reducing flood damage and preserving and enhancing, where possible,
natural resources in the floodplain, including but not limited to emergency preparedness plans,
flood control works and floodplain management plans, regulations and ordinances.

“Floodplain management regulations” means this chapter, and any federal, state or local
regulations plus community zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building codes, health
regulations, special purpose ordinances (such as a grading and erosion control) and other

Draft 6/6/13




applications of police power which control development in flood-prone areas to prevent and
reduce flood loss and damage.

“Flood proofing” means any combination of structural and nonstructural additions,
changes, or adjustments to structures, which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or
improved property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and their constants. (Refer to FEMA
Technical Bulletins TB1-93, TB8-93 and TB7-93 for guidelines on dry and wet flood proofing).

“Flood-related erosion” means the collapse or subsidence of land along a stream or wash,
the shore of a lake or other body of water as a result of undermining caused by waves or currents
of water exceeding anticipated cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water
level in a natural body of water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of
nature, such as flash flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and
unforeseeable event which results in flooding.

“Flood-related erosion prone area” means a land area adjoining the shore of a lake or
other body of water, which due to the composition of the shoreline or bank and high water levels
or wind driven currents, is likely to suffer flood-related erosion damage.

“Flood-related erosion area management” means the operation of an overall program of
corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood-related erosion damage, including but not
limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood-related erosion control works, and floodplain
management regulations.

“Floodway” means the channel of the river or other watercourse and the adjacent land area
that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the
water surface elevation. Also referred to as a “regulatory floodway.”

“Floodway encroachment lines” means the lines marking the limits of floodways on
federal, state and local floodplain maps.

“Floodway fringe” means the area of the floodplain on either side of the regulatory
floodway where encroachment may be permitted.

“Flood insurance risk zone designations” means the zone designations indicate the
magnitude of the flood hazard in specific areas of a community.

Zone A Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
' flood; base flood elevations are not determined.
Zone A1-30 and Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year base
Zone AE flood elevations are determined.-
Zone AO Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year

flood; flood depths of one to three feet (usually sheet flow on
sloping terrain) average depths are determined. For areas of
alluvial fan flooding, velocities are determined.

Zone AH Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
flood; flood depths of one to three feet (usually areas of ponding);
base flood elevations are determined.

Zone AR Special flood hazard areas that result from the decertification of a
previously accredited flood protection system that is in the process
of being restored to provide a one hundred year or greater level of
flood protection.

Draft 6/6/13




Zones AR/A1-30, Special flood hazard areas that result from the decertification of a
AR/AE, AR/AH previously accredited flood protection system that is in the process
of being restored to provide a one hundred year or greater level of
flood protection. After restoration is complete, these areas will
still experience residual flooding from other flooding sources.
Zone A99 Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
flood to be protected from the one hundred year flood by a federal
flood protection system under construction; no base flood
elevations are determined.

Zone V Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
flood; coastal floods with velocity hazards (wave action); no base
flood elevations are determined.

Zones V1-30 And Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year

Zone VE flood; coastal floods with velocity hazards (wave action); base
flood elevations are determined.

Zone B and Zone Areas of one hundred year flood; areas subject to the one hundred

X (shaded) 'year flood with average depths of less than one foot or with

contributing drainage areas less than one square mile; and areas
protected by levees from the base flood.

Zone C and Zone Areas determined to be outside the one hundred year floodplain.
X (unshaded)

Zone D Areas in which flood hazards are undetermined.

Zone E Area of special flood-related erosion hazards.

Zone M Area of special mudslide or mudslide or mudflow hazards.

“Footing” means the enlarged base of a foundation wall, pier, or column; designed to spread
the load of the structure so that it does not exceed the soil bearing capacity.

“Foundation” means the underlying structure of a building usually constructed of concrete
that supports the foundation walls, piers or columns.

“Foundation walls” means a support structure that connects the foundation to the main
portion of the building or superstructure.

“Fraud/ or victimization” means related to variance provisions of this chapter, the variance
- granted must not cause fraud on or victimization to the public. In examining this requirement, the
authority evaluating the request for a variance must consider the fact that every newly
constructed building adds to government responsibilities, and remains a part of the community
for fifty to one hundred years. Buildings permitted to be constructed below the base flood
elevation are subject during all those years to increased risk of damage from floods, while future
owners of the property and the community as a whole are subject to all the costs, inconvenience,
danger and suffering that those increased flood damages bring. Additionally, future owners may
be unaware of the risk potential to the property due to flood damage and the extremely high rates
for flood insurance. ' '

“Freeboard” means a margin of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level for
purposes of floodplain management. Freeboard tends to compensate for the many unknown
factors that could contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for selected size

Draft 6/6/13




flood and floodway conditions, such as wave action, bridge openings, and the hydrological effect
of urbanization of the watershed.

Functlonally dependent use” means a use, which cannot perform its intended purpose
unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only marina
facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers,
and boat building and boat repair facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related
manufacturing facilities.

“Govermng body” means the Storey Coumfy board of county commzsszoners }eeal

“Hardshlp means a requzremem‘ related to variance of this chapter The exceptional
hardship would result from a failure to grant the requested variance. The Storey County
commission requires the variance be exceptional, unusual, and pertain only to the property
involved. Mere economic or financial considerations, physical handicaps, personal preferences,
or the disapproval of one’s neighbors likewise cannot, as a rule, quality as an exceptional
hardship. All of these problems can be resolved through other means without granting a variance,
even if the alternative is more expensive, or requires the property owner to build elsewhere or
put the parcel to a different use than originally intended.

“Highest adjacent grade” means the highest natural elevation of ground surface prior to
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.

“Historic structure” means any structure that is:

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained
by the Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as
meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing
to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined

- by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

3. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic
preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of Interior; or

4. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic
preservation programs that have been certified either by an approved state program as
determined by the Secretary of the Interior or directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states
without approved programs.

“Hydraulics” means the science that deals with practical applications of water in motion.
“Hydrodynamic loads” means forces imposed on structures by floodwaters due to the
impact of moving water on the upstream side of the structure, drag along its sides, and eddies or

negative pressures on its downstream side.

“Hydrograph” means a graph that charts water movement as a function of time. i shows
flood stages, depicted in feet above mean sea level or gage height, plotted against stated time
intervals.

“Hydrology” means the science of the behavior of water in the atmosphere, on the earth’s
surface and underground.

“Hydrostatic loads” means forces imposed on a ﬂooded structure due to the weight of the
water.

Draft 6/6/13




“Letter of map amendment (LOMA)” means the procedure by which any owner or lessee
of property who believes his property has been inadvertently included in a special flood hazard
area can submit scientific and technical information to the Federal Insurance Administrator for
review to remove the property from said area. The administrator will not consider a LOMA if the
information submitted is based on alternation of topography or new hydrologic or hydraulic
conditions since the effective date of the FIRM.

“Letter of map revision (LOMR)” means an official revision to a currently effective FIRM.
ALOMR officially changes flood zone, floodplain and floodway designations, flood elevations
and planimetric features.

“Letters of map revision (based on fill) (LOMR-F)” means a letter from FEMA stating
that an existing structure or parcel of land that has been elevated by fill would not be inundated
by the base flood.

“Levee” means a man-made structure, usually an earthen embankment, designed and
constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to contain, control or divert the flow
of water so as to provide protection from temporary flooding.

“Levee system” means a flood protection system, which consists of a levee or levees, and
associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated
in accordance with sound engineering practices.

“Lowest floor” means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including basement. An
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or
storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building’s lowest floor;
provided that the enclosure does not violate applicable non-elevation design requirements.

“Lowest floor elevation (LFE)” means the measured distance of a building’s lowest floor
above the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) or other datum specified on the FIRM for
that location. _

“Manufactured home (mobile home)” means a structure, transportable in one or more
sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a
permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. The term “manufactured home”
does not include “recreational vehicles.” For flood plan management purposes, “manufactured
home” also includes park trailers, travel trailers, and other similar vehicles placed on a site for
greater than one hundred eighty consecutive days. For insurance purposes, “manufactured home”
does not include park trailers, travel trailers and other similar vehicles,

“Manufactured home park or subdivision” means a parcel or conuguous parcels of land
divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.

“Market value” means for the purposes of determining substantial improvement, market
value pertains only to the structure in question. It does not pertain to the land, landscaping or
detached accessory structures on the property. For determining improvement, the value of the
land must always be subtracted.

Acceptable estimates of market value can be obtained from the following sources:

1. Independent appraisals by a professional appraiser.

2. Detailed estimates of the structure’s actual cash value (used as a substitute for market
value based on the preference of the community). _

3. Property appraisals used for tax assessment purposes (adjusted assessed value: used
as a screening tool).

4. The value of buildings taken from NFIP claims data (used as a screcning tool).

Draft 6/6/13
10




5. “Qualified estimate” based on sound professional judgment made by staff of the local
building department or local or state tax assessor’s office.

As indicated above, some market value estimates should only be used as screening tools to
identify those structures where the substantial improvement ratios are obviously less than or
greater than fifty percent (e.g., less than forty percent or greater than sixty percent). For
structures that fall between the forty percent and sixty percent range, more precise market value
estimates should be used.

“Mean sea level” means for the purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the
National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 or other datum, to which base flood
elevations shown on a community’s flood insurance rate map are referenced.

Mobile home. See “manufactured home.”

“Modular building” means a building that is usually transported to its 31te on a steel frame
or special trailer because it does not have a permanent chassis like a manufactured (mobile)
home. A modular building is classified and rated under one of the other building types.

“Mudslide (mudflow) area management™ means the operation of an overall program of
corrective and preventive measures for reducing mudslide (mudflow) damage including, but not
limited to emergency preparedness plans, mudslide control works and floodplain management
regulations.

“Mudslide (mudflow)” means a condition where there is a river, flow or inundation of
liquid mud down a hillside usually as a result of a dual condition of loss of brush cover, and the
subsequent accumulation of water on the ground preceded by a period of unusually heavy or
sustained rain. A mudslide may occur as a distinct phenomenon while a landslide is in progress,
and will be recognized as such by the Federal Insurance Administrator only if the mudflow, and
not the landslide, is the proximate cause of damage that occurs.

“Mudslide prone area” means an area with land surfaces and slopes of unconsolidated
material where the history, geology, and climate indicate a potential for mudflows.

“National Geodetic Vertical Datam (NGVD)” means as corrected in 1929, is a vertical
control used as a reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.

“Natural grade” means the grade unaffected by construction techniques such as fill,
landscaping, or berming,

“New construction” means structures for which the “start of construction” commenced on
or after the effective date of an initial FIRM or after December 31, 1974, whichever is later,
including any subsequent improvements.

“New manufactured home (mobile home) subdivision” means a manufactured home park
or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the
manufactured homes are to be affixed including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads us completed
on or after the effective date of the floodplain management regulations adopted by Storey
County.

“Non-residential” means and includes, but is not limited to: small busmess concerns,
churches, schools, farm buildings (including grain bins and silos), pool houses, clubhouses,
recreational buildings, mercantile structures, agricultural and industrial structures, warehouses,
and hotels or motels with normal room rentals for less than six months duration.

“Obstruction” means and includes, but is not limited to, any dam, wall, whaft,
embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, protection, excavation, channelization, bridge, conduit,

Draft 6/6/13
11




culvert, building, wire, fence, rock gravel refuse, fill, structure, vegetation or other material in,
along, across or projecting into any watercourse which may later, impede, retard or change the
direction and/or velocity of the flow of water, or due to its location, has the propensity to snare or
collect debris carried by the flow of water, or the likelihood of being carried downstream.

“One hundred year flood.” See “base flood.”

“Other residential” means hotels or motels where the normal occupancy of a guest is 6 six
months or more; a tourist home or rooming house which rhaf has more than 4 four roomers. A
residential building (excluding hotels and motels with normal room rentals for less than 6 six
months duration and containing more than four dwelling units) is permitted incidental office,
professional private school, or studio occupancy, provided that the total area of such occupancy
is limited to less than 25 twenty-five percent of the total floor area within the building.

“Physical map revisions (PMR)” means a reprinted NFIP map incorporating changes to
floodplains, floodways, or flood elevations. Because of the time and cost involved to change,
reprint, and redistribute an NFIP map, a PMR is usually processed when a revision reflects large
scope changes.

“Ponding hazard” means a flood hazard that occurs in flat areas when there are depressions
in the ground that collect “ponds” of water. The ponding hazard is represented by the zone
designation AH on the FIRM.

“Post-FIRM construction” means construction or substantial improvement that started on
or after the effective date of the initial flood insurance rate map (FIRM) of the community or
after December 31, 1974, whichever is later.

~ “Principal residence” means a single family dwelling in which at the time of loss, the
named insured or the named insured’s spouse has lived for either (1) 80 eights percent of the
calendar year, or (2) 80 eighty percent of the period of ownership, if less than one year.

“Principal structure” means a structure used for the principal use of the property as
distinguished from an accessory use.

“Proper openings enclosures (applicable to zones A, A1-30, AE, AQ, AH, AR, and AR
dual zones)” means all enclosures below the lowest floor must be designed to automatically
equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of
floodwaters. A minimum of two openings, with positioning on at least two walls, having a total
net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to ,
flooding must be provided. The bottom of all openings must be no higher than one foot above

grade, _ _
' “Public safety/ nuisance” means a requirement related to variance provisions of this
chapter. The granting of a variance must not result in anything whieh that is injurious to safety or
health of the entire community or neighborhood, or any number of persons, or unlawfully
obstructs the free passage or use, in the customary manner, of any navigable lake, or river, bay,
stream, canal, or basin.

“Recreational vehicle” means a vehicle built on a single chassis, four hundred square feet
or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, designed to be self-propelled or
permanently towable by a light-duty track, and designed primarily not for use as a permanent
dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

“Residential cost” means the cost to replace property with the same kind of material and
construction without deduction for depreciation.

Draft 6/6/13
12




“Residential condominium building” means a building owned by the members of a
condominium association containing one or more residential units and in which at last seventy-
five percent of the floor area within the building is residential.

“Residential condominium building association policy (RCBAP)” means a policy
designed to insure, under one master policy, the entire residential condominium building,
including all units within the building. It is available only to residential condominium
associations.

“Riverine” means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river including tributaries, stream,
brook, etc.

“Special flood hazard area” “SheetHow-area™ means darkly shaded area on a flood hazard
boundary map (FHBM) or a flood insurance rate map (FIRM) that identifies an area that has a
one percent chance of being flooded in any given year (one hundred year floodplain). Over a
thirty year period, the life of most mortgagesf], there is at least a twenty-six percent chance that
this area will be flooded. The FIRM identifies these shaded areas as FIRM zones A, AO, AH,

'Al-30, AE, A99, AR, AR/A, AR/AE, AR/AI-A30, AR/AH, AR/AQ, V, VI-30 and VE.

“Start of construction” means and includes substantial improvement and other proposed
new development and means the date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of
construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement
was within one hundred eighty days from the date of the permit. The actual start means either the
first placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or
footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of
excavation, or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction
does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling; nor does it include the
installation of streets and or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings,
piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on
the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or
not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction
means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building, whether
or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.

“Structure” means a walled and roofed building that is principally above ground and
includes gas or liquid storage tanks and manufactured homes.

“Substantial damage” means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the
cost of restoring the structure to its before damage condition would equal or exceed fifty percent
of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

“Substantial improvement” means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other
proposed new development of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds fifty percent of the
market value of the structure before the “start of construction” of the improvement. This term
includes structures, which have incurred “substantial damage” regardless of the actual repair
work performed. The term does not, however, include cither;

1. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or
local health, sanitary or safety code specification which have been identified by the local code
enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions, or

2. Any alteration of a “historic structure” provided that the alteration will not preclude
the structure’s continued designation as a “historic structure ”

Dratt 6/6/13
13




“Variance” means a grant of relief from the requirements of this chapter, which permits
construction in a manner that would otherwise be prohibited by this chapter.

“Violation” means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with
this chapter. A structure or other development in a special flood hazard area, without an
elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in this
chapter, is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

“Water surface elevation” means the height, in relation to the National Geodetic Vertical
Datum (NGVD) of 1929, or (other datum, where specified) of floods of various magmtudes and
frequencies in the floodplains of coastal or riverine areas.

“Watercourse” means a lake, river, creek, streani, wash, arroyo, channel or other
topographic feature on or over which waters flow at least periodically. Watercourse includes
specifically designated areas in which substantial flood damage may occur.

“Zone” means a geographical area shown on a flood hazard boundary map or a flood
insurance rate map that reflects the severity or type of flooding in the area.

1 5.20.104 Declaration of public nuisance,

Every new structure, building, fill, excavation or development located or maintained within
any area of special flood hazard after date of first FIRM in violation of this ordinance is a public
nuisance per se and may be abated, prevented or restrained by action of this political
subdivision.

15.20.106 Abatement of violations.

Within thirty days of discovery of a violation of this chapter, the floodplain administrator
must submit a report to the governing body, which includes all information available to the
JSloodplain administrator that is pertinent to the violation. Within thirty days of receipt of this
report, the governing body may either.

A. Take any necessary action to effect the abatement of the vzolanon

B. Issue a variance fo this ordinance in accordance with the provisions of this chapter;

C. Refer the matter to the district attorney’s office; or

D. Order the owner of the property where the violation exists to provide whatever additional
information may be required for their determination. The information must be provided fo the
Soodplain administrator within thirty days of the order, and he must submit an amended report
to the floodplain board within twenty days. At their next regularly scheduled public meeting, the
governing body may take any action allowed in this section.

E. Submit to the administrator of Federal Insurance Administration a declaration for denial
of insurance, stating that the property is in violation of a cited statute or local law, regulation or
ordinance, pursuant to Section 1316 of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 as amended.

15.20.108 Unlawful acts.

A. It is unlawful for any person to divert, retard or obstruct the flow of waters in any
watercourse whenever it creates a hazard to life or property without securing the written
authorization of the Storey County building official. Where the watercourse is a delineated
Sfloodplain, it is unlawful to excavate or build any structure affecting the flow of waters without
securing written authorization of the floodplain administrator.

B. Any person violating the provisions of this section is guzlty of a mzsdemeanor

Draft 6/6/13
14




15.20.110 Violation-Penalty.

Neo-structure-shall-hereafterbe A person may not constructed, located, extended, converted,
or altered a structure w1thout full comphance w1th the terms of thls chapter and other apphcable
regulations. ; 9 ecHn

eemee&mw&h—em&dﬂens}—shaﬂ—eemﬁ%u{e Any person vzolatmg Ihe provzszons of rhzs chapz‘er is

guzlty of a misdemeanor.

15.20.120 Development permit-Required.

A floodplain development permit is hereby-established required for all construction and
other development to be undertaken in areas of special flood hazard in Storey County for the
purpose of protecting its citizens from increased flood hazards and ensuring new development is
constructed in a manner that minimizes its exposure to flooding, It shall-be is unlawful to
undertake any development in an area of special flood hazard, as shown on the flood insurance
rate map enumerated in Ssection 15.20.070, without a valid floodplain development permit.
Applications for a permit shall must be made on forms furnished by the local floodplain
administrator and may include, but not be limited to: plans in duplicate drawn to scale showing
the nature, location, dimensions, and elevation of the area in question, existing or proposed

structures, fill, storage of materials, drainage facilities;-and-the-location of theforegoing.

15.20.130 Development permit-Application.

The applicant shall must provide at least the following information, where applicable.
Additional information may be required on the permit application forms,

A. The proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level, of the lowest floor (including
basement) of all residential and non-residential structures whether new or substantially improved
to be located in zones A, A1-A30, AE, and AH, if base flood elevation data are available.

B. In zone AO the proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level, of the lowest floor
(including basement) and the elevation of the highest adjacent grade of all residential and non-
residential structures whether new or substantially improved.

C. The proposed ¢levation in relation to mean sea level, to which any new or substantially
improved non-residential structure will be flood proofed.

D. A certificate from a licensed professional engineer or architect in the state of Nevada that
any utility flood proofing meets the criteria in Ssection 15.20.220, (Utilities).

E. A certificate from a licensed professional engineer or architect in the state of Nevada that
any non-residential flood proofed structures meet the criteria in Ssection 15.20.260, Non-
residential construction.

F. When a watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of the proposed development,
the applicant must submit the maps, computations, and other materials, required by the Federal
Emergeney Management-Ageney{FEMAJo process a letter of map revision (LOMR) and pay
any fees or other costs assessed by FEMA for processing the revision.

G. A technical analysis, by a professional engineer licensed in the state of Nevada, showing
the proposed development located in the special flood hazard area will not cause physical
damage to any other property.

Draft 6/6/13
15




H. When there is no base flood elevation data available for zone A from any source, the base
flood elevation data will be provided by the permit applicant for all proposed development of
subdivisions, manufactured home and recreational vehicle parks in the special flood hazard
areas, for all developments of fifty af least 50 lots or five 5 acres, whichever is less.

15.20.150 Building official-Duties.
Duties and responsibilities of the building official shall include, but are not be limited to:
A. Permit Application Review.

1. Review all applications for completeness, particularly with the requirements of
Ssection 15.20.130 (Development permit-Application), and for compliance with the provisions
and standards of this chapter.

2. Review all subdivision and other proposed new development, including
manufactured home and recreational vehicle parks to determine whether the proposed
development site will be reasonably safe from flooding. When the proposed building site is
located in the special {lood hazard area, all new construction and substantial improvements must
will meet the applicable standards of Ssection 15.20.190 (General standards).

3. Determine whether any proposed development in the special flood hazard area may
result in physical damage to any other property to include stream bank erosion and any increase
in velocities or that it does not adversely affect the carrying capacity of the areas where base
flood elevations have been determined but a floodway has not been designated. For purposes of
the chapter, “adversely affects” means the cumulative effect of the proposed development when
combined with all other existing and anticipated development will increase the water surface
elevation of the base flood more than one-Aalf foot at any point. To assist the local floodplain
administrator in making this determination, the permit applicant may be required to submit
additional technical analysis.

4. Ensure all other required state and federal permits have been received.

B. Use of Other Ba,se Flood Data.

1. When - zeney{FEMAYhas designated special
flood hazard areas on the communlty s ﬂood insurance rate maps ETRM) but has not neither
produced water surface elevation data net identified as a floodway, the local floodplain
administrator shall must attempt to obtain, review and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation
and floodway data available from a Federal, state or other source, including data developed
pursuant to Ssubsection 15.20.150(EH), as criteria for requiring new construction, substantial
improvements or other proposed development f0 meets the requirements of this chapter.

2. When base flood elevations are not available, the local floodplain administrator may
use flood information from any other authoritative source, such as historical data, to establish
flood elevations within the special flood hazard areas. Thisinformation-shall Any new flood
elevations established by the flood plain administrator must be submitted to the board Sterey
GCounty-commisstonfor approval adeptien. This information must be sent to FEMA.

C. Alteration of Watercourses. Prior to issuing a permit for any alteration or relocation of
watercourse the local floodplain administrator must:

1. Have processed and received back from FEMA a letter of map revisions (LOMR).

2. Notify all adjacent communities, Nevada’s National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)
Coordinator, and submittal-ef-evidence of saeh the notification to the Federal Insurance
Administration, and the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

Draft 6/6/13

16




3. Require that maintenance be provided within the altered or relocated portion of the

watercourse so that the ﬂood—carrymg capaczty zs not dzmmzshed Detam&w—t—h&t—theqseten—ﬁal

D. Inspectlons The local ﬂoodplaln adm1mstrator or demgnee shatl- must make periodic
inspections throughout the period of construction to monitor compliance with the requirements
of the floodplain development permit or any variance provisions.

E. Stop Work Orders. The local floodplain administrator shal} must issue, or cause to be
issued, a stop work order for any floodplain development found non-compliant with the
provisions of this chapter or the conditions of the development permit, and all development
found ongoing without a floodplain development permit. Disregard of a stop work order will
shall subject the violator to the penalties described in Ssection 15.20.110.

F. Retaining Floodplain Development Documentation. The local floodplain administrator
must shall obtain and retain for public inspection and have available for the National Flood
Insurance Program coordinator or the FEAMA
representative conducting a community assistance visit, the following:

1. Floodplain development permits and certificates of compliance.

2. Certification required by Ssection 15.20.250(C).

3. Certification required by Ssection 15.20.260 (Flood-proofing nonresidential
constructiony.

4. Certification of elevation required by Ssection 15.20.230 {Subdivisions}.

5. Certification required by Ssection 15.20.280 (Floodways).

6. Reports required by Ssection 15.20.350 ¢Mudslide (i.e. mudflow) prone areas).

7. Variances issued pursuant to Ssection 15.20.7 75370 (Nature of variances).

8. Notices required under Ssection 15.20.150(C) €Alteration of Watercourses).

G. Map Determinations. The local floodplain administrator may make map interpretations
where needed, in writing with appropriate documentation, as to the exact location of the
boundaries of the areas of special flood hazard and where there appears to be a conflict between
a mapped boundary and actual field conditions.

H. Submission of New Technical Data to FEMA. When Storey County base flood elevations
either increase or decrease resulting from physical changes affecting flooding conditions, as soon
as practicable, but not later than six months after the date sueh rhe information becomes
available, Storey County will submit the technical or scientific data to FEMA. Sueh These
submissions are necessary so that upon confirmation of the physical changes affecting flooding
conditions, risk premium rates and flood plain management requirements will be based upon
current data.

15.20.160 Building official-Additional duties.

-The building official shallhave Aas the following additional duties:

A. Assist the administrator, at his request, in his delineation of the limits of the area having
special flood, mudslide, or flood-related erosion areas;

B. Provide sueh information as the administrator may request concerning present uses and
occupancy of the floodplain, mudslide, or flood-related erosion areas;

C. Cooperate with federal, state and local agencies and private firms which undertake to
study, survey, map and identify floodplain mudslide, or flood-related erosion areas, and

Dratt 6/6/13
17




cooperate with neighboring communities with respect to management of adjoining floodplain,
mudslide, aadfor flood-related erosion areas in order to prevent aggravation of existing hazards;

D. Submit on the anniversary date of the community’s initial eligibility an annual report to
the administrator on the progress made during the past year within the community in the
development and implementation of floodplain management measures;

E. Upon occurrence, notify the administrator in writing whenever the boundaries of the
community have been modified by annexation or the community has otherwise assumed or no
longer has authority to adopt and enforce floodplain management regulations for a particular
area. In order that all flood hazard boundary maps and flood insurance rate maps accurately
represent the community’s boundaries, include within sueh the notification a copy of the map of
the community suitable for reproduction, clearly delineating the new corporate limits or new area
for which the community has assumed or relinquished floodplain management regulatory
authority.

F. The building official shal must maintain for public inspection and furnish upon request,
for the determination of applicable flood insurance risk premium rates within all areas having
special flood hazards identified on a flood hazard boundary map or floed insurance rate map, any
certificates of flood proofing, and information on the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of
the level of the lowest habitable floor (including basement if habitable) of all new or
substantially improved structures, and include whether or not such structures contain a basement,
and if the structure has been flood proofed, the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to which
the structure was flood proofed.

15.20.170 Appeal board.

The flood hazard area appeal board as is established by Storey County shall 7o hear and
decide appeals when it is alleged there is an error in any requirement, decision, or determination
made by the floodplain administrator in the enforcement or administration of this chapter. The
board of county commissioners is the flood hazard area appeal board.

A. In-passing-apen When reviewing requests for variances, the flood hazard appeal board
shall must consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, standards specified in other
sections of this chapter, and;

1.The danger of materials being swept onto other lands and injuring others;

2. The danger to life and property due to the flooding or erosion damage;

3. The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the
cffect of such damage on the existing individual owner and future owners of the property;

4. The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;

5. The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where applicable;

6. The availability of alternative locations for the proposed use, which are not subject to
flooding or erosion damage;

7. The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;

8. The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain
management program for that area;

9. The safety of access to the property in time of flood for ordinary and emergency
vehicles;

10. The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the
floodwaters expected at the site;

Draft 6/6/13
18




11. The cost of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions,
including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical,
and water system, and streets and bridges.

B. Any applicant-te-whom-a-varianee-is granted a variance must shall be given written
notice everthe-signature-of szgned by the floodplain administrator a-cormunity-official thatfz]:

1. The issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base flood level will
result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as 25 twenty-five
dollars for 700 ene-hundred dollars of insurance coveragef;}.

2. Such eConstruction below the base flood level increases risks to life and property.
Itisrecommended-that-a 4 copy of the notice shall mus be recorded by the floodplain
administrator in the office of the Storey County recorder and-shall-berecorded in a manner so
that it appears as an exception on the title of the affected parcel of land.

C. The floodplain administrator shell must maintain a record of all variance actions,
including justification for their issuance, and report sueh each variances issued in its biennial
report submitted to the Federal Insurance Administration, Federal Emergency Management
Agency.

15.20.175 Nature of variances.

These variance criteria are based on the general principal of zoning law that variances
pertain to a piece of property and are not personal in nature. A variance may be granted for a
parcel of property with physical characteristics so unusual that complying with the requirements
of this chapter would create an exceptional hardship to the applicant or the surrounding
property owners. The characteristics must be unique to the property and not be shared by
adjacent parcels. The unique characteristics must pertain to the land itself not to the structure,
its inhabitants, or the property owners.

1t is the duty of the board of county commissioners to help protect its citizens from flooding,
This need is so compelling and the implications of the cost of insuring a structure built below
Sflood level is so serious that variances from the flood elevation or from other requirements in the
Sflood ordinance are quite rare. The long-term goal of preventing and reducing flood loss and
damage can only be met if variances are strictly limited, The variance guidelines provided in this
chapter are more detailed and contain multiple provisions that must be met before a variance
can be properly granted. The criteria are designed to screen out those situations in which
alternatives other than a variance are more appropriate.

15.20.180 Variance-Conditions.

A. Generally, variances may be issued for new construction, substantial improvements, and
other proposed new development to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous
to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood level,
providing that the procedures of this chaprer article have been fully considered. As the lot size
increases beyond one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing the variance
increases.

B. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of “historic striuctures” (as
defined in Ssection 15.20.040) upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation
will not preclude the structure’s continued designation as an historic structure and the variance is
the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

Draft 6/6/13
19




C. Variances shalt may not be issued within any mapped regulatory floodway if any increase
in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.

D. Variances shall may only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the
“minimum necessary” considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. “Minimum necessary”
means to afford relief with a minimum of deviation from the requirements of this chapter. For
example, in the case of variances to an elevation requirement, this means the board Steres
County-commission need not grant permission for the applicant to build at grade, or even to
whatever elevation the applicant proposed, but only to that elevation which the board Sterey
County-commission believes will both provide relief and preserve the integrity iof the local
ordinance.

E. Variances shall may only be issued upon af:}:

1. A sShowing of good and sufficient cause;

2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional
“hardship” (as defined in Ssection 15.20.040) to the applicant; and

3. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood
heights, additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create a nuisance (as
defined in Ssection 15.20.040, “pPublic safety/nuisance?), cause fraud or victimization (as
defined in Ssection 15.20.040) of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.

F. Variances may be issued for new construction, substantial improvement, and other
proposed new development necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided
that the provisions of this chapter See‘&eﬂs—l—:»—zg—%#%%—ﬂqfeﬁgh%—zg—l-%@e% are satisfied and
that the structure or other development is protected by methods that minimize flood damages
during the base flood and does not result in additional threats to public safety and does not create
a public nuisance.

G. Upon consideration of all the factors of Ssection 15.20.380 and the purposes of this

chapter, the board Sterey-County-commission may attach sueh conditions to the granting of,
variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes of this chapter.

15.20.230 Subdivisions.

A. All preliminary subdivision proposals shall must identify the flood hazard area and the
elevation of the base flood.

B. All subdivision plans shell must provide the elevation of proposed structures and pads.
If the site 1s filled above the base flood, the final lowest floor and pad elevation shalt must be
certified by a registered professional engineer or surveyor and provided to the floodplain
administrator.

C. All subdivision proposals shall must be consistent with the need to minimize flood
damage.

D. All subdivision proposals shall must have public utilities and facilities such as sewer,
gas, electrical and water systems located and constructed to minimize flood damage.

E. All subdivisions shall must provide adequate drainage to reduce exposure to flood
hazards.
- F. Additionally all subdivision proposals shal must demonstrate, by providing a detailed
hydrologic and hydraulic analysis, that the proposed development, when combined with all other
existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base
flood more than one foot at any point within the community.

Draft 6/6/13
20




15.20.240 Specific standards.

In all areas of special flood hazards where base flood elevation data has been provided as set
forth in Ssection 15.20.070 or 15.20.150 (B), the provisions set out in this article are required fo
be met.

15.20.250 Residential construction.

Residential construction, new or substantial improvements, shall must have the lowest ﬂoor
including basement:

A. In zone AQ, elevated above the highest adjacent grade to a height equal to or exceeding
the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM, or elevated at least twe 2 feet above the highest
adjacent grade if no depth number is specified.

B. In zone A, elevated to or above the base flood elevation, as determined by the
community.

C. In all other zones, elevated to or above the base flood elevation.

Upon completion of the structure, the elevation of the lowest floor including basement must
shall-be certified by a registered professional engincer or surveyor and verified by the
community-building inspector to be property elevated. The certification shaH must be provided
to the floodplain administrator using the current FEMA Elevation Certificate.

D. When constructing a crawlspace in a building within special flood zone areas, you it must
meet abide-by the National Flood Insurance Program’s minimum requirements defined in FEMA
Technical Bulletin 11-01.

E. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor, which are subject to flooding are prohibited
or shat must be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by
allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either
be certified by a licensed professional engineer or architect to meet or exceed the following
minimum criteria:

1. Must have a minimum of twe 2 openings having a total net area of not less than one
square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;

2. The bottom of all such openings will be no higher than one foot above the lowest
adjacent finished grade.

Openings may be equipped with louvers, valves, screens or other coverings or devices
provided they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.

15.20.260 Nonresidential construction.

Nonresidential construction shall must either be elevated to conform with Ssection
15.20.250 or together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities; must:

A. Will Bbe flood proofed below the elevation recommended under Ssection 15.20.250 so
that the structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water;

B. Will Hhave the structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic
loads and effects of buoyancy;

C. Will-Bbe certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that the standards of
Ssection 15.20.250 are satisfied. The certification shall must be provided to the ﬂoodplam
admmistrator .

Draft 6/6/13
21




15.20.270 Manufactured homes.

A. All manufactured homes that are placed or thar are substantially improved, within zones

A, AH, AE, and on the community’s flood insurance rate map, on sites located:

1. Outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision;

2. In a new manufactured home park or subdivision;

3. In an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision; or

4. In an existing manufactured home park or subdivision on a site upon which a
manufactured home has incurred “substantial damage” as a result of a flood;
Must be elevated on a permanent foundation so that the lewest-floer bottom of the structural
Jrame or the lowest point of the manufactured home will be elevated to or above the base flood
elevation and be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist
flotation, collapse and lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited
to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors. This requirement is in addition to
applicable state and local anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces.

B. All manufactured homes to be placed or substantially improved on sites in an existing
manufactured home park or subdivision within zones A, AH, and AE on the community’s flood
insurance rate map that are not subject to the provisions of will be elevated so that either:

1. The bottom of structural frame or the lowest point of the manufactured home is at or
above the base flood elevation; or

2. The manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers or other foundation
clements, of at least equivalent strength, that are no less than thirty-six inches in height above
grade and securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation,
collapse, and lateral movement.

C. Within zone A, when no base flood elevation data is available, new and substantially
improved manufactured homes shall must have the floor elevated at least three 3 feet above the
highest adjacent grade.

- D. Within zone AO, the floor for all new and substantially improved manufactured homes
wilk must be elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as the depth number
specified on the flood insurance rate map, or at least two feet if no depth number is specified.
Upon completion of the structure, a registered professional shall must certify the elevation of the
lowest floor, including basement.

15.20.280 Floodways.

Designated floodways are located within the special flood hazard areas established in
Ssection 15.20.070. Since the floodway is an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of
floodwaters, which carry debris, potential projectiles, and erosion potential, the following
provisions apply:

A. Encroachment shall-be are prohibited, including fill, new construction, substantial
improvements, storage of equipment or supplies, and any other development within the adopted
regulatory floodway; unless it has been demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis,
performed in accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment
would not result in any increase in flood levels within the community during the occurrence of
the base flood discharge and FEMA %he—FedePal—Emefgeﬁey—h%ragemeﬁhéfgeﬁey has issued a
conditional letter of map revision (CLOMR). :

Draft 6/6/13 :
22




B. If subsection A has been satisfied; all proposed new development and substantial
improvements will must comply with all other applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of
this article.

Draft 6/6/13
23




15.20.340 Standards for recreational vehicles.

All recreational vehicles placed on sites within the floodplain on the community’s flood
insurance rate map will eitherz}

A. Be on the site for fewer than ene-hundred-eighty /80 consecutive days;

B. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use. A recreational vehicle is ready for highway
use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type
utilities and security devices, and has no permanently attached additions; or

C. Will meet the permit requirements of Ssection 15.20.130 Development permit-
Application and the elevation and anchoring requirements for manufactured homes in Ssection
15.20.270 Manufactured homes.

15.20.350 Mudslide (i.e. mudflow) prone areas.

A. All permit applications wilt must be reviewed by the ﬂoodplam administrator to
determine if the proposed development will be located within a mudslide area.

B. The flood plain administrator reviewingproeess will determine if the proposed site and
improvements will be reasonably safe from mudslide hazards. Factors to be considered in
making this determination include but are not limited to the following:

1. Type and quality of soils.

2. Evidence of ground water or surface water problems.

3. Depth and quality of any fill.

4. The overall slope of the site.

5. The weight that any proposed structure will impose on the slope.

C. When a proposed development is located in an area that may have mudsiide hazards, the
following will be the minimum requirements fo be met by the applicant:

1. A report of a site investigation and further review be made by persons qualified in
geology and soils engineering.

2. The proposed grading, excavations, new construction, and substantial improvements
are adequately designated and protected against mudslide damages.

3. The proposed grading, excavations, new construction and substantial improvements
do not aggravate the existing hazard by creating either on-site or off-site disturbances.

4. Drainage, planting, watering, and maintenance be-sueh-88 does not te endanger slope
stability.

D. When a proposed development is determined to be within a mudslide hazard area, time
the following requirements will apply, includeing but not be limited to:

1. Adepﬂﬂg—&nd—eﬂfefemg-a Reqwre the proposed development to meet county grading

standards erdin o seres Manasaman

Ageney.

2. Regulate the location of foundation systems and utility systems of new construction
and substantial improvements.

3. Regulate the location, drainage and maintenance of all excavations, cuts and fills and
planted slopes.

4. Provide special requirements for protective measures including but not necessarily
limited to retaining walls, buttress fills, subdrains, diverted terraces and benching.

5. Require engineering drawings and specifications to be submitted for all corrective
measures, accompanied by supporting soils engineering amid geology reports. |

Draft 6/6/13

24




15.20.360 Flood-related erosion-prone areas.

A. Al permitapplications-will bereviewed-by-tThe floodplain administrator must review all
permit applications to determine if the proposed development will be located within a special
flood-related erosion hazard zone.

B. The flood plain administrator reviewingprocess-will must determine if the proposed site
alterations and improvements will be reasonably safe from flood-related erosion and will not
cause flood-related erosion hazards or otherwise aggravate the existing flood-related erosion
hazard.

C. When the proposed development is found to be in the path of flood-related erosion or to
increase the erosion hazard, requre the improvement o mus? be relocated or adeguate protective
measures to be taken which will not aggravate the existing erosion hazard.

D. When flood plain adminisirator determines ithas-been-determined-the proposed
development is in a special flood-related erosion hazard, as delineated zone E on the community
FIRM, the administrator must require;

1. A setback for all new development from the lake, bay, riverfront or other body of
water, to create a safety buffer consisting of a natural vegetative or contour strip. This buffer will
be designated according to the flood-related erosion hazard and erosion rate, in conjunction with
the anticipated “useful life” of structures, and depending upon the geologic, hydrologic,
topographic and climatic characteristics of the community’s land. The buffer may be used for
suitable open spaces purposes, such as for agricultural, forestry, outdoor recreation and wildlife
habitat areas, and for other activities using temporary and portable structures only.

15.20.380 Letters of map revision or amendment.

National Flood Insurance Program regulations provide procedures to remove property from
the one hundred year floodplain or from a special flood hazard area. Amendments and revisions
to community flood insurance rate maps cannot adversely impact the floodplain or floodway
delineation’s of the level of the one hundred year flood.

Draft 6/6/13
25




There are several procedures provided-whereby used by the Federal Insurance Administrator
will fo review information from the community, an owner, or a lessee of property where it is
believed the property should not be included in a special flood hazard area.

Submissions to FEMA for revisions to effective Flood Insurance Studies (FISs) by
individual and community requestors will require the signing of application/ and certification
forms by the applicant. These forms will provide FEMA with assurance that all pertinent data
relating to the revision is included in the submittal. They will also assure that: (a) the data and
methodology are based on current conditions; (b) qualified professional have assembled data and
performed all necessary computations: and (¢) all individuals and organizations impacted by
proposed changes are aware of the changes and will have an opportunity to comment on them.
FEMA procedures permit the following types of request:

A request for revision to the effective FIS information (FIRM, FBEM, and /or FIS report) is
usually a request that FEMA replace the effective floodplain boundaries, flood profiles,
floodway boundaries, etc., with those determined by the requestor. Before FEMA will replace
the effective FIS information with the revised, the requestor must: (a) provide all of the data used
in determining the revised floodplain boundaries, flood profiles, floodway boundaries, etc.; (b)
provide all data necessary to demonstrate that the physical modifications to the floodplain have
been adequately designed to withstand the impacts of the one percent annual chance flood event
and will be adequately maintained; (c) demonstrate that the revised information (e.g., hydrologic
and hydraulic analysis and the resulting floodplain and floodway boundaries) are consistent with
the effective FIS information. _

Requests for amendments or revisions to FEMA maps must be reviewed-and submitted to
EEMA-by the county eemnission-of Storey-County for review on forms acceptable to FEMA.
tThe applicant for a map amendment or revision is required to prepare all the supporting
information and appropriate FEMA forms. If the review of the application requires expertise
beyond that of county personnel, the county may hire qualified persons, to be paid by the
applicant, to review the application. Once the application is approved by the county as to form
and content, and it meets the requirement of this code, the county will send it to FEMA.

The scientific or technical information to be submitted with these requests may include, but
is not limited to the following:

A. An actual copy of the recorded plat map bearing the seal-ef the-appropriate recordation
official- County-clerlkorrecorder-of deeds indicating the official recordation and proper citation,

deed or plat book volume and page number, or an equivalent identification where annotation of
the deed or plat book is not the practice.
B. A topographical map showing:

1. Ground elevation contours in relation to the NVGD (National Geodetic Vertical
Datum).

2. The total area of the property in question.

3. The location of the structure or structures located on the property in guestion.

4. The elevation of the lowest adjacent grade to a structure or structures,

5. An indication of the curvilinear line, which represents the area subject to inundation
by a base flood. The curvilinear line should be based upon information provided by an
appropriate authoritative source, such as a federal agency, department of water resources, a
county water control district, a county or city engineer, a Federal Emergency Management
Agency Flood Insurance Study, or a determination by a registered professional engineer.

Draft 6/6/13
26




C. A copy of the FHBM or FIRM indicating the location of the property in question.

D. A certification by a registered professional engineer or licensed land surveyor that the
lowest grade adjacent to the structure is above the base flood elevation.

E. The completion of the appropriate forms in the Federal Emergency Management
Agency’s Packets, Amendments and Revisions to National Flood Insurance Program Maps (MT-
1 FEMA FORM 81-87 Series and MT-2 FEMA form 81-89 Series).

Proposed on ,2013.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2013.
Vote: Ayes Commissioners
Nays Commissioners
Absent Commissioners

Bill Sjovangen, Chairman
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa DuFresne
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on ., 2013.

Draft 6/6/13
27




